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PART |

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains, in aduditto historical information, forward-looking statents that involve risks and
uncertainties. DXP Enterprises, Inc.'s actual tessduld differ materially. Factors that could caes contribute to such differences include,
but are not limited to, those discussed in "Bushie®Business -- Cautionary Statements”, "Manageis&iscussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations" alsg@where in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Usilde context otherwise requires,
references in this Annual Report on Form 10-K ®'tBompany” or "DXP" shall mean DXP Enterprises, lla Texas corporation, together
with the Company's subsidiaries.

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
GENERAL

The Company is a leading provider of maintenaregair and operating ("MRO") products, equipment imtegrated services, including
engineering expertise and logistics capabilitiesntlustrial customers. The Company provides a wagge of MRO products in the followil
categories: fluid handling equipment, bearings posier transmission equipment, general mill andtgafepplies and electrical products. The
Company also offers a line of valve and valve awhom products within the pipe, valve and fittinggegory and is evaluating alternatives
designed to expand its presence in this area. Dingp@ny offers its customers a single source ofnated services and supply on an efficient
and competitive basis by being a first-tier digitdr which purchases its products directly fromrenufacturer. The Company also provides
integrated services such as system design, falomiganstallation, repair and maintenance for iistomers. The Company offers a wide range
of industrial MRO products, equipment and servibesugh a complete continuum of customized andiefit MRO solutions, ranging from
traditional distribution to fully integrated supptpntracts. The integrated solution is tailoreddtisfy the customer's unique needs.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The Company estimates that annual sales in thetdSitates of MRO products for industrial custoneersently exceeds $200 billion, of
which the Company estimates over $150 billion arthe five major product categories of

(i) fluid handling equipment, (ii) bearings and paviransmission equipment,

(iii) general mill and safety supplies, (iv) eléctl products and (v) pipe, valve and fittings. M\&dditional expansion or through an allianc
the pipe, valve and fittings category, the Compaiilybe able to provide as a first-tier distribugmmoducts in the five major MRO product
categories. Based on 1997 sales as reported bgtigdiources, the Company was the 37th largesthiisir of MRO products in the United
States. On a combined basis after giving effetiécCompany's 1997 acquisitions of Strategic Sugpby ("SSI"), Pelican State Supply
Company ("Pelican™) and 1998 acquisitions of TedEtic Supply, Ltd. ("Tri-Electric"), Lucky ElectriSupply, Inc. ("Lucky") and M.W.
Smith Equipment, Inc ("Smith"), the Company woult’e been the 30th largest distributor of MRO praslirtc the United States.

While the growth in the industrial distribution rket is generally related to the expansion of théddnStates economy, revenues attributable
to the outsourcing of MRO supply procurement, in@encontrol and warehouse management, known &sgliated supply”, are expected to
grow at an annualized rate of 40% from $1.8 billiwr1 995 to $10 billion in 2000. The industrial wisution market is highly fragmented,

with the 50 largest distributors accounting fosslé#san 16% of the total United States market duti®@7. As a result, most industrial
customers currently purchase their industrial segghrough numerous local distribution and suggisnpanies. These distributors generally
provide the customer with repair and maintenancacss, technical support and application expertigh respect to one product category.
Products typically are purchased by the distribdoresale directly from the manufacturer and watesed at branch distribution facilities of
the distributor until sold to the customer. Thetouser also typically will purchase an amount ofdarct inventory for its near term anticipa
needs and warehouse those products at its industgauntil the products are used.

The Company believes that the current distribusigstem for industrial products in the United Statesates inefficiencies at both the
customer and the distributor level through excessntory requirements and
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duplicative cost structures. To compete more dffelst, the Company's customers and other usersR®Ndroducts are seeking ways to
enhance efficiencies and lower MRO product andymement costs. In response to this customer dékiee primary trends have emerged in
the industrial supply industry:

- Industry Consolidation. Industrial customers heaguced the number of supplier relationships thajntain to lower total purchasing costs,
improve inventory management, assure consisteigly levels of customer service and enhance punsbgsiwer. This focus on fewer
suppliers has led to consolidation within the fragwed industrial distribution industry.

- Customized Integrated Service. As industrial @ogrs focus on their core manufacturing or othedpction competencies, they
increasingly are demanding customized integratéwises, ranging from value-added traditional disiion to integrated supply and system
design, fabrication, installation and repair andntemance services.

- Single Source, First-Tier Distribution. As indtigk customers continue to address cost containntiegrte is a trend toward reducing the
number of suppliers and eliminating multiple tiefdistribution. Therefore, to lower overall cottsthe MRO customer, some MRO
distributors are expanding their product coverageliminate second-tier distributors and the diffies associated with alliances.

Industrial distributors typically provide professa sales expertise, engineering expertise, invemteailability, fabrication and assembly and
in-house and field service. The Company believasith recent acquisition of other businesses basnaterially affected its ability to

continue to provide these services to its custormedsthe customers of the acquired distributorgéadh the Company believes that as a larger
and more diverse organization it should be ablaamtain the same or higher level of service teitstomers and the customers of any
acquired distributors. The Company also believasttie level of service provided to the custométh® acquired business may be enhanced
as a result of the availability of a broader ranfproducts, the elimination of duplicative overtiegand DXP's SmartSource and American
MRO integrated supply programs.

RECENT ACQUISITIONS

The Company completed two strategic acquisitiorn9i®7, and three additional acquisitions in thet fiix months of 1998 directed at
expanding its product lines and increasing its gaolgic presence. Through the Company's acquisifi@8sI, the Company added general
and safety supply to its product offerings and exigal its geographic presence to seven additioagdssand 24 additional cities throughout
the United States. The acquisition of SSI also robd the Company's integrated supply capabilitiemugh SSI's existing integrated supply
contracts and SmartSource program. The Companysli9@/ acquisition of Pelican expanded the Comsaggheral mill and safety supply
product lines and added an additional integrat@gplgucontract with a major refinery in Baton Rougeuisiana. In the first six months of
1998, the Company completed the acquisitions o&#isets of Tri-Electric and Lucky, thereby addifegtical products to its product
offerings. The Company's acquisition of the asse&mith in May 1998 expanded its pump distributiapabilities in East Texas.

PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

The Company currently serves as a first-tier distar of more than 170,000 stock keeping units (USK for use primarily by customers
engaged in the general manufacturing, oil and getspchemical, service and repair and wood produodisstries. Other industries served by
the Company include mining, construction, chemigalnicipal, food and beverage and pulp and pager.dompany's MRO products
include a wide range of products in the fluid hamglequipment, bearings and power transmissionpagemt, general mill and safety supplies
and electrical products. The Company also offdiseaof valve and valve automation products witthia pipe, valve and fittings category and
is seeking to expand its presence in this ared @dtlitional expansion or through an alliance agipe, valve and fittings category, the
Company will be able to provide as a first-tiertdigitor a substantial portion of products in theefmajor MRO product categories. The
Company's products are distributed from 54 distiiisucenters strategically located
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throughout the United States and sold through ahessfforts of approximately 300 employees whoegally are compensated on a
commission basis.

Fluid Handling Equipment

The Company's fluid handling equipment line inclaidefull line of (i) centrifugal pumps for transi@nd process service applications, such as
petrochemicals, refining and crude oil producti@iy rotary gear pumps for low- to medium-presssegvice applications, such as pumping
lubricating oils and other viscous liquids, (iilupger and piston pumps for high-pressure seryigti@ations such as salt water injection and
crude oil pipeline service and (iv) air-operatedptiragm pumps. The Company also provides varioogpaccessories. Sales of fluid
handling equipment accounted for 53%, 44% and 3B&eoCompany's revenues for the years ended Dezre®ih 1996, 1997, 1998,
respectively. Such sales accounted for 37% and &% Company's revenues for the year ended Dezregih 1997 and December 31,
1998, respectively, on a pro forma basis aftemgj@éffect to the SSI, Pelican, Tri-Electric, Luckyd Smith acquisitions.

Bearings and Power Transmission Equipment

The Company provides a full line of bearings, hpseals and power transmission products. The Coygbraring products include several
types of mounted and unmounted bearings for atyasifeapplications. Hose products distributed by @ompany include a large selection of
industrial fittings and stainless steel hoses, aytic hoses, Teflon(R) hoses and expansion jaastsyell as hoses for chemical, petroleum, air
and water applications. The Company distributesmealucts for downhole, wellhead, valve and conipieequipment to oilfield service
companies. Power transmission products distribbyetthe Company include speed reducers, flexiblglkog drives, chain drives, sprockets,
gears, conveyors, clutches, brakes and hoses. &dlesrings, hoses, seals and power transmisgigipraent accounted for 39%, 31% and
25% of the Company's revenues for the years enéedrber 31, 1996, 1997 and 1998, respectively. Salels accounted for 24% of the
Company's revenues for the year ended Decembd98%,and December 31, 1998, on a pro forma basisgif/ing effect to the SSI,

Pelican, Tri-Electric, Lucky and Smith acquisitions

General Mill and Safety Supplies

The Company, as a result of the acquisitions ofé@@IPelican in May 1997, offers a broad rangeeokegal mill and safety supplies, such as
abrasives, tapes and adhesive products, coatingsilricants, cutting tools, fasteners, hand tgalsitorial products, pneumatic tools,
welding equipment, eye and face protection proddicts aid products, protection products, hazasdmaterial handling products,
instrumentation and respiratory protection produstdes of general mill supply and safety prodactsounted for approximately 26% of the
Company's revenue on a pro forma basis for thegmded December 31, 1997 and 25% of the Compaesnue for the year ended
December 31, 1998.

Pipe, Valve and Fittings

The Company's valve and valve automation produittémthis category include a full line of pneuneathydraulic and electric actuators for
critical or highpressure service applications or remote valve tiparapplications, such as refinery, offshore aipelne applications, as w:

as for applications involving large-diameter pipae Company also provides a full line of manualwarear and bevel gear actuators for low-
pressure applications not requiring remote opematicluding tank farms, water lines and municipater systems. Sales of valves and valve
automation products accounted for 8%, 6% and 5#efCompany's revenues for years ended Decembé&®8aé, 1997 and 1998,
respectively. Such sales accounted for 4% of the@2my's revenue for the years ended December 8%, dred 1998, on a pro forma basis
after giving effect to the SSI, Pelican, Tri-Eléctt ucky and Smith acquisitions.
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Electrical Products

The Company offers a broad range of electrical pets] such as wire conduit, wiring devices, eleatrfittings and boxes, signaling devices,
heaters, tools, switch gear, lighting, lamps, tapgs, wire nuts, batteries, fans and fuses. SHletectrical products accounted for 6% of the
Company's revenues for the year ended Decembd998, Such sales accounted for 9% of the Compaeyenues for the years ended
December 31, 1997 and 1998, on a pro forma ba®sgifing effect to the SSI, Pelican, Tri-Electiicicky and Smith acquisitions.

CUSTOMIZED DISTRIBUTION SERVICES
System Design, Fabrication, Installation and Repaiand Maintenance Services

In addition to distributing products, the Compamgyides complete, customized pumping, valve aut@matnd power transmission system
design and fabrication services through its enginggpersonnel and fabrication facilities. The C@my also provides training services with
respect to the installation and basic applicatwmiriss products as well as around-the-clock fiedair services supported by a leased fleet of
fully equipped service vehicles.

Integrated Supply

SmartSource, the Company's integrated supply pmogaiows a customer to choose from a completeimonin of supply options, ranging
from traditional distribution to integrated supply.

CUSTOMERS

The Company provides its products and services¢o 85,000 customers in various industries, prialtypgeneral manufacturing, oil and gas,
petrochemical, service and repair and wood prod@ttser industries include mining, constructionemtical, municipal, food and beverage
and pulp and paper. No one customer representeel tfman 5% of the Company's sales for the year ebéedmber 31, 1998.

SALES AND MARKETING

Approximately 297 employees, serving in variousawdes ranging from branch or operations manafers outside sales representatives
(108) and direct sales representatives (138) stipip@Company's marketing and sales efforts. Thagamy's branch and operations
managers support the sales efforts through ditestbmer contact and manage the efforts of thedeitsid direct sales representatives. The
Company has structured compensation to providenthass to its sales representatives to increass shitough the use of commissions. The
Company's outside sales representatives focus itahrigulong-term relationships with customers attilpugh their product and industry
expertise, providing customers with product appiicg engineering and after-the-sale services.ditext sales representatives support the
outside sales representatives and are responsibdatering product orders and providing technscgdport with respect to the Company's
products. Because the Company offers a broad rafingeducts, the Company's outside and direct saj@gsentatives are able to use their
existing customer relationships with respect to progluct line to cross-sell the Company's othedpeblines. In addition, geographic
locations in which certain products are sold alsokeing utilized to sell products not historicadlyld at such locations. As the Company
expands its product lines and geographical preséregsesses the opportunities and appropriatadiof introducing existing products to
new customers and new products to existing custan®eior to implementing such cross-selling effatie Company must provide
appropriate sales training and product expertises teales force.

Unlike many of its competitors, the Company markistproducts primarily as a first-tier distributgenerally procuring products directly
from the manufacturers, rather than from otherritistors. As a first-tier distributor, the Compaisyable to reduce its customers' costs and
improve efficiencies in the supply chain.

The Company believes it has increased its competittvantage through its traditional and integratgaply programs, designed to address
the customer's specific product and procuremerdsiééhe Company
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offers its customers various options for the indtign of their supply needs, ranging from servis@aingle source of supply for all or
specific lines of products and product categoesftering a fully integrated supply package in efhthe Company assumes the procurement
and management functions, including ownership eémory, at the customer's location. The Compaumyigue approach to integrated supply
allows the Company to design a program that besstHe needs of the customer. For those custonuecbasing a number of products in large
guantities, the customer is able to outsourcerath@st of those needs to the Company. For custowitiissmaller supply needs, the Compi

is able to combine its traditional distribution adgities with its broad product categories andambed ordering systems to allow the custc

to engage in one-stop shopping without the commitmexquired under an integrated supply contract.

SUPPLIERS

The Company acquires its products through numesdgmal equipment manufacturers. The Company Igtsilalition agreements with these
manufacturers, some of which give the Company skedurights to distribute the manufacturers' praslic a specific geographic area. All of
the Company's distribution agreements are suljecdncellation by the manufacturer upon one yetic@or less. No one manufacturer
provides products that account for 10% or mordnef@ompany's revenues. The Company believes tieanalive sources of supply could be
obtained in a timely manner if any distribution egment were canceled. Accordingly, the Company dotbelieve that the loss of any one
distribution agreement would have a material adveffect on its business, financial condition autes of operations. Representative
manufacturers of the Company's products includ&dgijld's, G&L, Viking, Wilden and Gaso (fluid hairdj products), (ii) SKF,
Torrington/Fafnir, Timkin and NTN, Dodge/Relianéeglk, Gates, Martin Sprocket, T. B. Woods, Emerstexnord and Baldor Electric
(bearing and power transmission products), (iiijddrBullerfield, Gulf Coast Fasteners, Norton GAdyrasives, Sastech, Inc., and LaCross
Rainfair Safety Products (general mill and safefypy), (iv) Cutler-Hammer, Cooper, Killark, andliéd and American Insulated Wiring
(electrical products) and (v) G.H. Bettis (valvalaralve automation products).

MANAGEMENT INFORMATION SYSTEM

The Company uses technology to benefit customeatsaimprove the Company's productivity and effig. In addition to traditional
functions of inventory control, order processingrghasing, accounts receivable, accounts payablgameral ledger, the Company's
computer system has the flexibility to integratéhwhe customer's maintenance, accounting and reamag systems. The Company's system
allows for real-time reporting of industrial prodseised by work order, department and individuaall as on-line stock inquiry and order-
status reports. The Company's system supports eegduanctions, such as EDI, customized billing, aadr reporting, facsimile transmissi
bar coding and preventative maintenance. The Coyp&mart Source program delivers DXP's technotodiie integrated supply customer,
thereby eliminating duplication and inefficienctedower the total acquisition cost of MRO produdthis system links the Company's
branches and corporate offices with manufactunedscaistomers into one network system.

The Company operates a mainframe system that ostggl by the industry-standard open system enwiesti. The Company has invested
significant resources within the last 18 monthsitwease the capabilities and networking opporiesivf this system. The Company's system
supports a large number of customer specific daggbahich tie into the Company's primary datab&lsis. capability allows the Company to
provide its customers with a wide variety of repdHat are customized to meet the specific neetteeatustomer.
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COMPETITION

The Company's business is highly competitive. They@any competes with a variety of industrial suppstributors, many of which may
have greater financial and other resources thagtimepany. Many of the Company's competitors ardlsanterprises selling to customers in
a limited geographic area. The Company also corspeith larger distributors that provide integrageghply programs and outsourcing
services similar to those offered by the Companguh its SmartSource program, some of which magtite to supply their products in a
more efficient and cost-effective manner than toenany. The Company also competes with direct distitibutors, large warehouse stores
and, to a lesser extent, manufacturers. While noéitlye Company's competitors offer traditional digttion of some of the product groupir
offered by the Company, the Company is not awarmgfmajor competitor that offers on a non-direaflrasis a product grouping as broad
as that offered by the Company. Further, whileaientlirect-mail distributors provide product offegs as broad as the Company, these
competitors do not offer the product applicatiomgieeering and after-the-sale services providetheyCompany.

BACKLOG
Backlog is not material to the Company's business.
INSURANCE

The Company maintains liability and other insuratie it believes to be customary and generallysist@nt with industry practice. There can
be no assurance that such insurance will be adefprathe risks involved, that coverage limits witit be exceeded or that such insurance
apply to all liabilities. The occurrence of an abeeclaim in excess of the coverage limits mairdiby the Company could have a material
adverse effect on the Company's financial conditind results of operations.

GOVERNMENT REGULATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

The Company is subject to various laws and reguiatielating to its business and operations, aridu&health and safety regulations as
established by the Occupational Safety and HeatttmiAistration.

Certain of the Company's operations are subjefeideral, state and local laws and regulations otlintg the discharge of materials into or
otherwise relating to the protection of the envinemt. Although the Company believes that is hagaale procedures to comply with
applicable discharge and other environmental ldiwesrisks of accidental contamination or injuryrfréhe discharge of controlled or
hazardous materials and chemicals cannot be eliedr@mpletely. In the event of such an accidértGompany could be held liable for ¢
damages that result, and any such liability coatdeha material adverse effect on the Company. Tdmepgany is not currently aware of any
situation or condition that it believes is likety have a material adverse effect on its resultpefations or financial condition.

EMPLOYEES
At December 31, 1998, the Company had 706 full-tenmployees. The Company believes that its relatipnsith its employees is good.
CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS

The Company's expectations with respect to futeselts of operations that may be embodied in ardiveritten forward-looking statements,
including any forward-looking statements that maycbntained in this Annual Report on FormK,Qare subject to risks and uncertainties
must be considered when evaluating the likelihdoith® Company's realization of such expectatiotm® Tompany's actual results could
differ materially. Factors that could cause or cbute to such differences include, but are nottéohto, those discussed below.
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Ability to Comply with Financial Covenants of Credit Facility

The Credit Facility requires the Company to compith certain specified covenants, restrictionsaficial ratios and other financial and
operating tests. The Company's ability to complghvainy of the foregoing restrictions will dependitsnfuture performance, which will be
subject to prevailing economic conditions and ofaetors, including factors beyond the Companytgrmd. A failure to comply with any of
these obligations could result in an event of défander the Credit Facility, which could permitcateration of the Company's indebtedness
under the Credit Facility. The Company from timeitoe has been unable to comply with some of tharftial covenants contained in the
Credit Facility (relating to, among other thingse tmaintenance of prescribed financial ratios) tzas] when necessary, obtained waivers or
amendments to the covenants from its lender. Athahe Company expects to be able to comply wighctivenants, including the financial
covenants, of the Credit Facility, there can bassurance that in the future the Company will He hdo so or that its lender will be willing
to waive such compliance or further amend such wants.

Risks Associated With Acquisition Strategy

Future results for the Company will depend in parthe success of the Company in implementingosiition strategy. This strategy
includes taking advantage of a consolidation tierttie industry and effecting acquisitions of dmttors with complementary or desirable
new product lines, strategic distribution locati@msl attractive customer bases and manufactusgiae$hips. The ability of the Company to
implement this strategy will be dependent on itditsio identify, consummate and successfully askite acquisitions on economically
favorable terms. Although the Company is activelgléng acquisitions that would meet its stratedjectives, there can be no assurance that
the Company will be successful in these effortsaddition, acquisitions involve a number of spedgis, including possible adverse effects
on the Company's operating results, diversion afagament's attention, failure to retain key acaupersonnel, risks associated with
unanticipated events or liabilities, expenses aatat with obsolete inventory of an acquired conypamd amortization of acquired intangible
assets, some or all of which could have a matadaérse effect on the Company's business, finaogiaition and results of operations.
There can be no assurance that the Company oriathestrial supply distributors acquired in theui will achieve anticipated revenues and
earnings. In addition, the Company's loan agreesneith its bank lender (the "Credit Facility"), dam certain restrictions that could
adversely affect its ability to implement its acEjtion strategy. Such restrictions include a priavigrohibiting the Company from merging
consolidating with, or acquiring all or a substahpart of the properties or capital stock of, afttyer entity without the prior written consent
of the lender. There can be no assurance thatdhg&ny will be able to obtain the lender's conseiainy of its proposed acquisitions.

Risks Related to Acquisition Financing

The Company currently intends to finance acquisgiby using shares of Common Stock for a portioallasf the consideration to be paid. In
the event that the Common Stock does not maintairffecient market value, or potential acquisiticandidates are otherwise unwilling to
accept Common Stock as part of the consideratiothéosale of their businesses, the Company magdpgred to use more of its cash
resources, if available, to maintain its acquisitwogram. If the Company does not have sufficoash resources, its growth could be limited
unless it is able to obtain additional capital tigb debt or equity financings. Under the Creditiltgcall available cash generally is applied
to reduce outstanding borrowings. As of Decemberl998, the Company had approximately $4.3 milhorailable under the Credit Facility,
and there can be no assurance that the Companlendlble to obtain additional financing on a timiehgis or on terms the Company deems
acceptable. See "Management's Discussion and Asalfy/Einancial Condition and Results of Operatienisiquidity and Capital Resources".

Risks Related to Internal Growth Strategy

Future results for the Company also will depenpgart on the Company's success in implementingié&rnal growth strategy, which includes
expanding existing product lines and adding nevdpeblines. The



ability of the Company to implement this strategif depend on its success in acquiring and intéggatew product lines and marketing
integrated forms of supply arrangements such asetheing pursued by the Company through its Smart8grogram. The Company
acquired SSI and Pelican in the second quarte®®7 1Tri-Electric in the first quarter of 1998 ahdicky and Smith in the second quarter of
1998 and plans to acquire other distributors withplementary or desirable product lines and custdrases. Although the Company intends
to increase sales and product offerings to theoousts of SSI, Pelican, Tri-Electric, Lucky and Swand other acquired companies, reduce
costs through consolidating certain administratind sales functions and integrate the acquired aoieg’ management information systems
with the Company's system, there can be no asseithatthe Company will be successful in theseresifo

Substantial Competition

The Company's business is highly competitive. Then@any competes with a variety of industrial suppstributors, some of which may
have greater financial and other resources tha@tmepany. Although many of the Company's traditi@istribution competitors are small
enterprises selling to customers in a limited gapgic area, the Company also competes with lanigéitditors that provide integrated sup
programs such as those offered through outsousgngces similar to those that are offered by tbenffany's SmartSource program. Som
these large distributors may be able to supply {r@iducts in a more timely and cost-efficient mantihan the Company. The Company's
competitors include direct mail suppliers, largeaeteuse stores and, to a lesser extent, certainfaarers.

Risks of Economic Trends

Demand for the Company's products is subject togésiin the United States economy in general aodaguic trends affecting the
Company's customers and the industries in which ¢oenpete in particular. Many of these industrgessh as the oil and gas industry, are
subject to volatility while others, such as therpelhemical industry, are cyclical and materiallfeafed by changes in the economy. As a
result, the Company may experience changes in deéfieaiits products as changes occur in the maxets customers.

Dependence on Key Personnel

The Company will continue to be dependent to aiiagmt extent upon the efforts and ability of DaR. Little, its Chairman of the Board,
President and Chief Executive Officer. The losthefservices of Mr. Little or any other executiféogr of the Company could have a
material adverse effect on the Company's finarmmatlition and results of operations. The Compargsdwt maintain key-man life insurance
on the life of Mr. Little or on the lives of itstmtr executive officers. In addition, the Compampsity to grow successfully will be dependent
upon its ability to attract and retain qualifiedmagement and technical and operational personhelfdilure to attract and retain such per:
could materially adversely affect the Company'aificial condition and results of operations.

Dependence on Supplier Relationships

The Company has distribution rights for certaindurat lines and depends on these distribution rifgitta substantial portion of its business.
Many of these distribution rights are pursuantdoteacts that are subject to cancellation upole Idt no prior notice. Although the Company
believes that it could obtain alternate distribotights in the event of such a cancellation, grentnation or limitation by any key supplier of
its relationship with the Company could result itremporary disruption on the Company's businessiarndrn, could adversely affect results
of operations and financial condition. See "BusinesSuppliers".

Year 2000 Issues

Many existing computer systems and applicationsaher control devices use only two digits to idigra year in the date field, without
considering the impact of the upcoming change éncéintury. As a result,
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such systems and applications could fail or createneous results unless corrected so that thepromess data related to the Year 2000. The
Company relies on its computer systems and softfearnancial reporting, customer account inforioatand inventory management and
replenishment. The Company is in the process &sadyg its state of readiness for the Year 2000eapdcts its software to be Year 2000
compliant by the end of the third quarter of 199®m completion of the upgrading of its softwared&idnally, the Company has developed
and implemented a web-based questionnaire aloriganstandard questionnaire in order to communigatecustomers, major vendors and
other third parties with whom it has material rielaships to determine if they will be ready for tfiear 2000. To the extent unexpected
problems associated with the Year 2000 arise duhiagmplementation phase of the Company's Yea® pB0gram or due to the fact that the
Company's customers, vendors and other third gaatie not compliant by the Year 2000, it could haweaterial adverse effect upon the
Company's business, financial condition and regiltsperations. See "Management's Discussion aradyAis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations -- Year 2000 Readiness Dssicéd.

Risks Associated With Hazardous Materials

Certain of the Company's operations are subjefeideral, state and local laws and regulations otlintg the discharge of materials into or
otherwise relating to the protection of the envinemt. Although the Company believes that it hagjadte procedures to comply with
applicable discharge and other environmental lawesrisks of accidental contamination or injuryrfrthe discharge of controlled or
hazardous materials and chemicals cannot be eliedrampletely. In the event of such an accidéetGompany could be held liable for ¢
damages that result and any such liability coulkelematerial adverse effect on the Company's ¢imanondition and results of operations.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

The Company owns its headquarters facility in HonsT exas which has 45,000 square feet of Officec8plt also owns or leases 48 branch
distribution facilities located in Alabama, Arizanarkansas, Colorado, Georgia, ldaho, Louisianantdona, Nevada, New Mexico, North
Dakota, Oklahoma, Tennessee, Texas, Utah and Wypimirese facilities range from 2,500 square fedB3®,000 square feet in size. Those
facilities that are not owned by the Company aaséel for terms generally ranging from three to jigars. The leases provide for periodic
specified rental payments and certain leases amwvable at the option of the Company. The Compatig\yes that if the leases for any of its
facilities were not renewed, other suitable faeitcould be leased with no material adverse effedts business, financial condition or res
of operations. Certain of the facilities owned bg Company are pledged to secure indebtednese @fdimpany.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time the Company is a party to varilegml proceedings arising in the ordinary courfsésdusiness. The Company believes
that the outcome of any of these proceedings willave a material adverse effect on its busirfesmcial condition or results of operations.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None.



PART Il
ITEM 5.MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AN D RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The Common Stock has traded on The Nasdaqg Natidagiet since July 2, 1997, under the symbol "DXAEJmM December 27, 1996,
through July 2, 1997, the Common Stock traded ertier the Counter Bulletin Board of National Adation of Securities Dealers, Inc.
("OTC Bulletin Board"). The following table setsrfio on a per share basis the high and low salesgfor the Common Stock as reported on
The Nasdaqg National Market and the OTC Bulletini®lpas applicable, for the periods indicated.

HIGH LOwW

1997

First Quarter(1)(2)..ccocoevvveeeeiiiieaeeeee 16 9

Second Quarter(1)(2)..cccoceevviiveeiiiiieeees 131/2 10 1/2

Third Quarter(2)....ccccccevevvevccciiiiee 14 12

Fourth Quarter(2)......cccovevvvvveveeienes 12 1/2 10
1998

FirstQuarter(2).....ccooeeevvveeeinciees 12 10

Second QUArer(2)...cccccccveveeeeeeeeeeieieeeeee 117/8 8

Third Quarter(2).....cccccevevvevccciiiieee 11 7

Fourth Quarter.........ccooovvvvvvvvveieenee. 8 3/4 6 3/4
1999

First Quarter (through March 26, 1999)........... ... 10 6

(1) Restated to give effect to a two-to-one revetsek split of the Common Stock that was effed¥sy 12, 1997.
(2) Restated to give effect to a two-to-one reveteek split of the Common Stock that was effechalg 17, 1998.

On March 26, 1999, the closing sales price of thendon Stock was $7.125 per share. On March 26, #898 were 149 holders of recorc
outstanding shares of Common Stock.

The Company anticipates that future earnings wveltdtained to finance the continuing developmeritisdfusiness. In addition, the Credit
Facility prohibits the Company from declaring oypay any dividends or other distributions on itpital stock except for limited dividends
on its preferred stock. Accordingly, the Compangslaot anticipate paying cash dividends on the Com$tock in the foreseeable future.
The payment of any future dividends will be at diecretion of the Company's Board of Directors afitildepend upon, among other things,
future earnings, the success of the Company's éssiactivities, regulatory and capital requiremehts general financial condition of the
Company and general business conditions.

In July 1998, the Company issued 21,200 share®ofr@on Stock for an aggregate consideration of &5t0 an employee pursuant to the
exercise of a stock option granted under the Cogipdaong-Term Incentive Plan. The Company considach securities to have been
offered and sold in a transaction not involvingublc offering and, therefore, to be exempted fremistration under Section 4(2) of the
Securities Act. The foregoing transaction did meive underwriters.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The Company is a Texas corporation that was forimd®96 to effect a consolidation of SEPCO Indestrinc. ("SEPCO") and Newman
Communications Corporation (the "Reorganizationispiant to which DXP became a public company. Roidine Reorganization, the
Company had no operations and its only assetsstedsof $1,000 cash. The Reorganization has bermuated for as a recapitalization of
SEPCO. The selected historical consolidated firsmtata of SEPCO set forth below for each of theryén the two-year period ended
December 31, 1995, have been derived from theedliditnsolidated financial
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statements of SEPCO. The selected historical cinlaged financial data set forth below for eachhef years in the three-year period ended
December 31, 1998 have been derived from the alddrsolidated financial statements of the Compangl,assume that the Reorganization
had been effected on the first day of the peri@s@nted. This information should be read in cortjanavith "Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiems" and the consolidated financial statememdisretes thereto included elsewhere in
this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

SE PCO DXP
1994 1995 1996 1997 1998
(IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT FOR PER SHARE DATA)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
DATA:
REVENUES.......eeeiiiiiiieeiiie e $102,592 $111,328 $125,208 $169,667 $203,443
Gross profit(1)............... .. 27,217 29,157 32,117 44,880 54,020
Operating income(1)(2)...........cc..... 4,150 4598 2,785 6,434 7,450
Income before provision for income
tAXES. .o 3,038 3,512 1,635 4,670 5,004
Net income.......c.ccceevvverneennnne. 1,862 2,088 890 2,768 2,874
Preferred stock dividend................ - (23) (119) (103) (90)
Net income attributable to common
Shareholders..........ccceeeuernee. 1,862 2,065 771 2,665 2,784
Basic earnings per common share......... $ 0.38 $ 054 $ 019 $ 065 $ 0.67
Common shares outstanding(4)............ 4,878 3,837 3,997 4,082 4,159
Dilutive earnings per share............. $ 0.35 0.46 0.18 0.49 0.51
Common and common equivalent shares
Outstanding(3)(4)....c.ccvvevveenne 5,370 4501 4,857 5,703 5,596

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

SEPCO DXP

199 4 1995 1996 1997 1998

(IN THOUSANDS)
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET DATA:
Working capital...........cccoovevvennnnne. $20, 011 $23,967 $25,612 $36,262 $37,085
Total @ssets.......cccvevvernenne. " 163 43,254 45,042 67,636 81,332
Long-term debt obligations. 461 21,275 22,300 33,395 42,910
Shareholders' equity(3)....... 315 9,688 10,459 13,031 15,607

(1) Year ended December 31, 1996 includes a onehmarge to compensation expense of $618,000 éaxrttendment of book value options
to fair market value options and approximately $288 in professional costs associated with the geozation. The Company disposed of
approximately $1,100,000 of excess inventory inddelser 1996 that it had accumulated through priquisitions of product groups that
were subject to shelf-life restrictions. This isree-time charge not expected to occur in futuresyea

(2) Year ended December 31, 1998 includes a onehmrge to professional fees and travel costd 64 800 associated with the Company's
decision to discontinue the offering of additionammon stock.

(3) Number of shares used to compute earningshaee @ind shareholders' equity has been restatefld¢ot the Reorganization as of the first
day of the first period presented.

(4) Common stock and earnings per share have lestated to give effect to the two-to-one reverdié sipthe Common Stock which became
effective May 12, 1997 and another two-to-one regestock split that became effective July 17, 1998.
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ITEM 7.MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINA NCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis should bel ieaconjunction with the Financial Statements egldted notes contained elsewhere in
this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

GENERAL

The Company is a leading provider of MRO produetgjipment and integrated services, including ergging expertise and logistics
capabilities, to industrial customers. The Comparovides a wide range of MRO products in the flo&hdling equipment, bearings and
power transmission equipment, general mill andtgafepplies and electrical product categories. Thmpany also offers a line of valve and
valve automation products within the pipe, valvd &tiings category and is seeking to expand iespnce in this area. The Company offers
its customers a single source of integrated ses\aoel supply on an efficient and competitive bhagibeing a first-tier distributor which
purchases its products directly from the manufacturhe Company also provides integrated servigels as system design, fabrication,
installation, repair and maintenance for its cugmnThe Company offers a wide range of indusiilO products, equipment and services
through a complete continuum of customized andiefft MRO solutions, ranging from traditional diltrtion to fully integrated supply
contracts. The integrated solution is tailoredatisfy the customer's unique needs.

The Company's products and services are marketb@l states to over 25,000 customers that are edgagevariety of industries, many of
which may be counter cyclical to each other. Denfanthe Company's products generally is subjechtanges in the United States economy
and economic trends affecting the Company's custoara the industries in which they compete inipaldr. Certain of these industries,
such as the oil and gas industry, are subject fatility while others, such as the petrochemicalustry, are cyclical and materially affected
changes in the economy. As a result, the Compamwithin particular markets and product categoergerience changes in demand as
changes occur in the markets of its customers.

The Company's strategy is focused on addressimgrdurends in the industrial distribution markattugh a combination of acquisitions and
internal growth. The Company seeks acquisitionswlilhprovide the Company access to additionaldoret lines and customers to enhanc
position as a single source industrial distribwtih first-tier distribution capabilities. Key elents of the Company's internal growth strategy
include leveraging existing customer relationsh@ganding product offerings from existing locaipreducing costs through consolidated
purchasing programs and combined product distdbutenters, designing and implementing innovatolet®ns to address the procurement
and supply needs of the Company's customers and tie Company's traditional distribution and imétgd supply capabilities to increase
sales in each area. Future results for the Compihlpe dependent on the success of the Compaimptementing its acquisition and

internal growth strategy.

The ability of the Company to implement its accfiosi and internal growth strategy will be dependamits ability to identify, consummate
and assimilate acquisitions on economically favierédérms, to acquire and successfully integrate pesluct lines and to successfully mai
alternate forms of supply arrangements througlCiiapany's SmartSource program. Although the Comzagtively seeking acquisitions
and integrated supply arrangements that would itestrategic objectives, there can be no assurdratéhe Company will be successful in
these efforts. Further, the ability of the Compameffect its strategic plans will be dependenitsmbtaining financing for its planned
acquisitions and expansions, and there can beswraage that any such financing will be availablee Company plans to examine
appropriate methods of financing any such acquoisstiincluding issuance of additional capital sta#bt or other securities or a combination
thereof. If the Company were to issue shares a@pital stock in any acquisition, such issuanaddbe dilutive to existing shareholders.

The Reorganization

The Company was incorporated on July 26, 1996didifate the Reorganization. On December 4, 1886 Reorganization was effected
through (i) a merger of a wholly owned subsidiafyhe Company with and
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into SEPCO and (ii) a merger of a wholly owned #tibsy of the Company with and into Newman Commatians Corporation
("Newman").

Prior to the Reorganization, the Company had noatjpes and its only assets consisted of $1,000. ddse Reorganization has been
accounted for as a recapitalization of SEPCO. Roithe Company's acquisition of Newman, Newman avasn-operating entity with
nominal assets. The merger with Newman was effeasegimeans to implement the original registratiothe Common Stock under the
Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 and increas€tmpany's shareholder base. The Reorganizasaitad in approximately $900,000 in
one-time costs, which included a $618,000 chargadditional compensation expense for the conversfmutstanding book-value options
into market-based options and approximately $28ti0@rofessional costs associated with the Redzgtan.

In December 1996, the Company disposed of $1.1amitif excess inventory which it had accumulatedulgh prior acquisitions of product
groups that were subject to shelf-life restrictioniis is a one-time charge not expected to oatiuture years.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The Company currently distributes a substantial memof products in four of the five major produategories within the industrial
distribution market and also provides producthmfifth category, pipe, valve and fittings. Thengmany has provided three of those product
categories, fluid handling equipment, bearings tasasmission equipment and pipe, valve and fittiogs number of years. The fourth
product category, general mill and safety suppliess added in 1997 with the acquisitions of SSIRelican and the fifth category, electrical
products, was added in February 1998 with the adeun of Tri-Electric.

The following table sets forth the revenues gerer&iom the sales of major products and servicgsillited by the Company and the
percentage of revenues of various items.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

SEPCO DXP

1996 1997 1998

REVENUES:
Fluid handling equipment................ccccc..... .. $65,709 $ 75,472 $79,299
Bearings and power transmission equipment.......... .. 49,144 53,180 50,840
General mill and safety supplies(1)................ . -- 31,660 49,992
Pipe, valve and fittingS.........cccccccoeeeiinne .. 10,355 9,355 9,539
Electrical Products(2).......ccccvevviiveeennunns . - - 13,773

Total revenues.........ccceeevveveeneen. .. $125,208 $169,667 $203,443
PERCENT OF REVENUES:
Cost of sales.........eeeviiiiiiieiiiiiee s . 74.3%  73.5% 73.4%
Gross profit........ceoeeeeeeiiiieieeiiieenn, . 257 26.5 26.6
Selling, general and administrative expenses....... . 23.5 22.7 22.9
Operating iINCOMe.........cooovveiiciiviniiieneens . 2.2 3.8 3.7
Other iNCOMe........cuvviiiiiiiiieeiceee . .8 5 .6
Interest expense, Net........cccceeeveviiiiinnnns . 1.7 1.6 1.8
Income before taxes..........coceveevivvveiinnns . 1.3 2.7 25
Income tax eXpense..........ccccvvvvveeeeeeneennn. . .6 1.1 1.0
Net iNCOME.......cuvveiiiiiiieeeiee e . 0.7% 1.6% 1.4%

(1) Product category added in connection with ttepssitions of SSI and Pelican in the second quaR87.
(2) Product category added in connection with gguasitions of Tri-Electric and Lucky in the firsix months of 1998.
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Year Ended December 31, 1998 Compared to Year Endé&kcember 31, 1997

Revenues for 1998 increased 19.9% to $203.4 miftimm 1997. The Company's acquisitions during 1888 1997, which included general
mill and safety supply, pump supply and electrggiply companies, accounted for the $33.8 millimréase in revenues. Sales of fluid
handling equipment increased by 5.1%, or $3.8 amlln 1998 over the comparable period in 1997. Was due to the $4.8 million in
revenues generated by Smith, the pump companyrachjn May 1998. Sales of bearings and power trissan equipment for 1998
decreased 4.4%, or $2.3 million over the comparpéted in 1997, due primarily to the effects ofieer oil prices and its affects on the oll
industry. Sales of valve and valve automation emeipt increased 2.0%, or $.2 million over the corapbe period in 1997. A comparison of
general mill and safety supplies and electricap$iep is not presented due to the fact that thdymbcategories did not exist during the entire
comparative prior period.

Gross margins remained relatively consistent in81&9compared to 1997. The Company currently eggeeche increase in manufacturers
prices to continue due to increased raw materistiscand market conditions. Although the Compangnids to attempt to pass on these price
increases to its customers to maintain currentsgmergins, there can be no assurances that thea@gymypll be successful in this regard.

Selling, general and administrative expenses rezdaielatively consistent as a percentage of reventi898 as compared to 1997. The
Company recorded a one-time charge of $474,00098 telated to professional fees and travel caste@ated with a proposed offering of
common stock which the Company decided to abariloe.Company is continuing its efforts to contairreauce operating expenses where
possible.

Operating income for 1998 increased 15.8% fronctreesponding period in 1997, from $6.4 million$®.5 million, due to the various
factors discussed above.

Interest expense during 1998 increased by $1.0omitb $3.7 million as compared to 1997. The inseea&as primarily due to greater interest
expense resulting from additional borrowings inedrto finance two acquisitions during the secoratigu of 1997, a third during the first
quarter of 1998, two acquisitions during the secgunalrter of 1998 and the purchase of real propestyg as the Company's corporate
headquarters. Average interest rates were slidnther during 1998 as compared to 1997.

The Company's provision for income taxes for 1988eased by $.2 million compared to 1997, as dtreba marginal increase in profits.

Net income for 1998 was consistent with that geteerian 1997, due primarily to the higher interegtense incurred from the financing of 1
acquisitions over the prior eighteen month peragkther with the purchase of the real propertyttierCompany's corporate headquarters and
the one-time charge associated with the Compaegisidn to discontinue the proposed offering of own stock.

Year Ended December 31, 1997 Compared to Year Endé&kcember 31, 1996

Revenues for 1997 increased 35.5% to $169.7 miftmm 1996. This revenue growth resulted from aloim@tion of acquisitions and interr
growth. The SSI and Pelican acquisitions added@Billion in revenues during 1997 while revenuesxsting branches in 1997 increased
$12.8 million, or 10.2% from 1996. This internabgtth was driven by increased demand from existigjamers and the Company's focus
cross selling product categories. Sales of fluiddtiag equipment increased 14.9% in 1997, or $dIBom, over 1996. Sales of bearings and
power transmission equipment for 1997 increaseth8d® $4.0 million, over 1996. Sales of pipe, vadwvel fittings decreased $1.0 million in
1997 over 1996 due primarily to increased competiti

Gross margin increased $12.8 million, or 39.7%1f@®7 as compared to 1996. Gross margin as a pageenf sales increased from 25.7% to
26.5% in 1997 as compared to the same period i6.I8% increase in 1997 gross margin was primattiybutable to the $1.1 million
inventory write down in 1996. The Company alsoireal increases in its gross margins for salessdftitd handling equipment, bearings and
transmission equipment and pipe valve and fittifgeese increases in the profit margins for saléken
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Company's historical product lines were offsetliy fower average margins associated with salesrérgl mill and safety supplies.

Selling, general and administrative expenses Weré?2 of revenues for 1997 compared to 23.5% fol6198is decrease was attributable to
the occurrence of various one-time expenses dd99& aggregating $900,000, including a one-timeeagp of $618,000 for additional
compensation associated with converting book vsiaek options to market value options and approteéipa284,000 in professional fees
associated with the Reorganization.

Operating income for 1997 increased 131% over 1866) $2.8 million to $6.4 million. As a percentagferevenues, operating income
increased from 2.2% of sales to 3.8% of sales 8V 1% compared to the same period in 1996, dueetearious factors discussed above.

Interest expense for 1997 increased by $553,0006.8%0, from 1996 as a result of increased delsiseassociated with the Company's
acquisitions during 1997 and increased workingteapequirements during the period. Average inter@®s were slightly lower during the
year ended December 31, 1997 as compared to

The Company's provision for income taxes for 19&f@ased by $1.2 million compared to 1996 as dtresan increase of approximately
$3.0 million in pre-tax income. Included in the B38come tax provision was a $135,000 reserveridnternal Revenue Service ("IRS")
examination, which was resolved in 1997 by the Camypmaking a payment of $69,100 to the IRS.

Net income for 1997 increased $1.9 million, or 21@%¥mpared to 1996. Increased net income for 18%bmpared to 1996 can be prima
attributed to an increase in gross margin and eedse in selling, general and administrative castsf percent of sales.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
General

Under the Company's loan agreements with its bamitdr (the "Credit Facility"), all available cashgenerally applied to reduce outstanding
borrowings, with operations funded through borraysiminder the Credit Facility. The Credit Facilipntains customary affirmative and
negative covenants as well as financial covendatisrequire the Company to maintain a positive ¢stand other financial ratios. The
Company's policy is to maintain low levels of casiul cash equivalents and to use borrowings undettadit Facility for working capital.
The Company had $4.3 million available for borroggrunder the working capital component of the Gredcility at December 31, 1998. 1
Company had no availability under the acquisitienmt loan component of the Credit Facility at Decentil, 1998. Working capital at
December 31, 1997 and December 31, 1998 was $3bi@mmand $37.1 million, respectively. During 1B@nd 1998, the Company collected
its trade receivables in approximately 46 and 4&deespectively, and turned its inventory appratiety five and four times respectively, on
an annualized basis.

In the second and again in the fourth quarter 8818he Company amended the Credit Facility thavipled for borrowings up to an
aggregate of the lesser of (i) a percentage ofdhateral value based on a formula set forth tihhesied (ii) $50.0 million. Additionally, the
amendments increased borrowings under the termdoaponent of the Credit Facility from $4.9 millicm$12.4 million upon conversion of
$5.0 million of the amounts outstanding under #alving loan component to the term loan and addeddditional $2.5 million term loan
which has been used for the purchase and renovatti@al property to serve as the Company's cotpdreadquarters.

As of December 31, 1998, interest rates ranged friBOR plus 1.50 to LIBOR plus 3.00 depending uploa relationship of the Company's
debt to cash flow and financial covenants tiedebtaervice levels and cash flow. At December 9981 the Company had borrowings under
the Credit Facility of $19.9 million at LIBOR pl&00 (approximately 7.35% at December 31, 1998¢. fEmainder of the Company's
borrowings under the Credit Facility bore interaisprime (7.75% at December 31, 1998) for a weifjhte
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average interest rate of 7.55%. Borrowings undeQtedit Facility are secured by receivables, itmgn and machinery and equipment and
mature January 2000.

As of December 31, 1998, the Company was not inptiamce with certain of its financial ratios for igh it subsequently obtained waivers
from its lender. In conjunction with obtaining tleowaivers, the Company and its lender amended ribaitG-acility effective March 30, 199
which now provides for borrowings up to an aggregstthe lesser of (i) a percentage of the cokdteslue based on a formula set forth
therein and (ii) $44.0 million. Additionally, thelBOR pricing, set to expire as of June 30, 199% wancelled and therefore all of the
borrowings under Credit Facility will bear interegtprime. As of March 22, 1999, the unused lindanrthe amended credit facility is
approximately $3.0 million.

The Company generated cash from operating acgwitieb5.7 million in 1998 as compared to $.12 millgenerated during 1997, due
primarily to a decrease in the Company's trade ausaeceivable balance.

The Company had capital expenditures of approxiln&@ 9 million in 1998 as compared to $.83 millidaring 1997. Capital expenditures
1998 were primarily related to the purchase andavgment of real property ($2.5 million) to be usexthe corporate headquarters for the
Company's management and administrative group hssvether office, computer and communication pqeént. Capital expenditures for
1997 were predominantly for the expansion of difgdn LaPorte, Texas ($.15 million), computerdaelated equipment ($.29 million) and
office furniture and equipment ($.29 million).

During 1998, in three separate transactions, thegany completed the acquisition of substantiallpfthe assets of three unaffiliated
businesses for an aggregate consideration corgsistiapproximately $12.5 million in cash, $2.3 oifl of assumed trade payables and other
accrued expenses, $.7 million in a promissory aattup to approximately $.3 million in a deferregyment (based on the earnings before
interest, taxes and depreciation of one of theisediusinesses). The cash portion of the condidaravas financed through the acquisition
term loan under the Credit Facility. An aggregdt&t2 million of goodwill was recorded in connegtiwith these acquisitions, which may
adjusted based on any adjustments to the purchizes prhe Company believes that any such adjusswesuld be minimal.

The Company believes that cash generated from tipesaand available under its Credit Facility wiiket its future ongoing operational and
liquidity needs and capital requirements. Fundihthe Company's acquisition efforts and integratepply strategy will require capital in the
form of the issuance of additional equity or debafhcing. There can be no assurance that futurdirigrwill be available to the Company or,
if available, as to the terms and conditions thireo

YEAR 2000 READINESS DISCLOSURE

Many existing computer systems and applicationsaher control devices use only two digits to idigra year in the date field, without
considering the impact of the upcoming change éncéintury. The Year 2000 issue is the risk thaesys, products and equipment utilizing
date-sensitive software or computer chips with tigit date fields will fail to properly recognizbe Year 2000. Such failures by the
Company's software or hardware or that of goverrnastities, customers, major vendors and othed thérties with whom the Company has
material relationships could result in interruptiaf the Company's business which could have arrabéelverse effect on the Company.

In response to the Year 2000 issue, the Companintidemented a company-wide Year 2000 program desigo identify, assess and
address significant Year 2000 issues in the Conip&®y business operations, including productssandices, business applications,
information technology systems and facilities amitientify the Company's customers, major vendondsather third parties with whom the
Company has material relationships that may hawa 2600 issues.

The Company's Year 2000 program is an integratedtj-phase process covering information technolegstems and hardware as well as
equipment and products with embedded computer ¢egisology. The primary phases of the progran{Braventorying existing
equipment and systems; (2) analyzing equipmensgstéms to identify those which are not Year 2@@@ly and to prioritize critical items;
(3) communicat-
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ing with customers, major vendors and other thadips with whom the Company has material relatiggsregarding their Year 2000
readiness; (4) remediating, repairing or repla@ggipment and systems that are not Year 2000 reaudly;
(5) testing to verify that Year 2000 readiness lbeen achieved for the Company's equipment andragste

Phases (1) and (2) of the Company's Year 2000 anodpave been completed. The Company has develogeichalemented a web-based
guestionnaire along with a standard questionnaimrder to implement phase (3) of its Year 200@ypam. The Company will continue
communicating with customers, major vendors aneérothird parties with whom the Company has mateei@tionships to determine if they
will be ready for the Year 2000 by the end of 198Bhough the most likely worst case scenario falbbgdhe Company would require the
Company to carry additional inventory levels toigate vendor complications, to the extent the Camgsacustomers, vendors and other third
parties are not compliant by the Year 2000 and peebed complications result therefrom, it couldéhavmaterial adverse effect upon the
Company's results of operations and financial domdi With respect to phase (4), the Company ctirexpects that its software will be
Year 2000 compliant by the end of the third quanfet999. The upgrading of the Company's softwaraddress Year 2000 issues is being
handled through new releases of current softwasstddncurred to date relative to this conversiamehbeen minimal and are expected to
continue to be minimal in future periods. The Compwill continue to analyze systems and servicas tilize date embedded codes that
may experience operational problems when the Ye@0 & reached. The Company expects to begin gbage the second quarter of 1999.
All costs associated with Year 2000 issues willfmduded as part of normal software upgrades oraifgy costs, as appropriate.

The foregoing statements of this subsection aendgd to be and are hereby designated "Year 208@ifss Disclosure” statements within
the meaning of the Year 2000 Information and RezgfirDisclosure Act.

ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In June 1997, the Financial Accounting Standardsr@¢'FASB"), issued Statements Nos. 130 and 13¥btiRing Comprehensive Income”
and "Disclosures about Segments of an EnterpridedRatated Information”, respectively. The majoryismns of these statements and their
impact on the Company are discussed below.

SFAS No. 130 requires the presentation of compr&Ekerincome in an entity's financial statementan@rehensive income represents all
changes in equity of an entity during the reporfiegiod, including net income and charges diretctlgquity which are excluded from net
income. The adoption of this statement in 199&isamticipated to have any impact as the Compamgutly does not enter into any
transactions which result in charges (or credit®ady to equity (such as additional minimum pemsiiability charges, currency translation
adjustments or unrealized gains and losses onadl@ifor-sale securities, etc.).

SFAS No. 131 provides revised disclosure guidelfoesegments of an enterprise based on a managememach to defining operating
segments. The Company currently operates in orgyimaustry segment and analyzes operations on g@uyrwide basis, therefore, the
adoption of this statement is not expected to malgimpact the Company. The Company has adoptedstatement for the year ended
December 31, 1998.

In June 1998, SFAS No. 133, "Accounting for Delivatinstruments and Hedging Activities,"” was isSUBHAS No. 133 establishes
accounting and reporting standards for derivatiggruments, including certain derivative instrunsesrinbedded in other contracts
(collectively referred to as derivatives), andfiedging activities. It requires that an entity rgiae all derivatives as either assets or liabi

in the statement of financial position and meashiose instruments at fair value. If certain comadisi are met, a derivative may be specifically
designated as (a) a hedge of the exposure to chamgjee fair value of a recognized asset or lighidr an unrecognized firm commitment,

a hedge to the exposure to variable cash flowsfofeeasted transaction or (c) a hedge of thedareurrency exposure of a net investment in
a foreign operation, an unrecognized firm committnan available-for-sale security or a foreign enaydenominated forecasted transact
The accounting for changes in the fair value oéavative (that is, gains
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or losses) depends on the intended use of theadis@vand the resulting designation. SFAS No. B3fiective for all fiscal quarters of fiscal
years beginning after June 15, 1999. Managemerst mokebelieve that the adoption of this statemelithave material impact on the financ
position or results of operations of the Company.

INFLATION

The Company does not believe the effects of inftatiave any material adverse effect on its resdiltgperations or financial condition and
attempts to minimize inflationary trends by passimgnufacturer price increases on to the customenewer practicable.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

None.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of DXieEprises, Inc., and Subsidiaries:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of DXP Enterprises, Inc. (a Texas cotipojaand Subsidiaries as of
December 31, 1997 and 1998, and the related cdasedl statements of earnings, shareholders' eapityash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 1998. Tiremecial statements are the responsibility of @rmnpany's management. C
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesarftial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with geneaaitepted auditing standards. Those standardsedhat we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whethemthedial statements are free of material misstaterdenaudit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and digelesn the financial statements. An audit alsoudek assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by managememtell as evaluating the overall financial statetpeesentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referedlbove present fairly, in all material respedts, ¢onsolidated financial position of DXP
Enterprises, Inc., and subsidiaries at Decembet @47 and 1998, and the results of their operationktheir cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 1998, ifocmity with generally accepted accounting prineg

Arthur Andersen LLP

Houston, Texas
March 22, 1999
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DXP ENTERPRISES, INC., AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE AMOUNTS)

ASSETS
DECEMBER 31
1997 1998
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash. o $ 736 $1,625
Trade accounts receivable, net of allowance for d oubtful
accounts of $476 in 1997 and $1,155in 1998.... ... 25,707 24,367
INVENtONES. .. 26,018 28,926
Prepaid expenses and other.........cccccoeeeeeee. L 996 1,453
Deferred income taxes......ccocccovvcvveeeeeeeee L. 722 870
Total current assets......ccccceeeveeneee . 54,179 57,241
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, néet.......ccccceeee. . 10,403 13,160
OTHER ASSETS:
Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortizatio n of
$1,817in 1997 and $2,175in 1998.............. ... 2,682 10,447
Notes Receivable from officers and employees..... ... 200 324
Other. .o 172 160
3,054 10,931
Total @ssetS....coceveveiiieeiiieeeeee $67,636 $81,332
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Trade accounts payable........ccccoeeceeveeee. Ll $14,368 $14,826
Accrued wages and benefits............cceeeeeeee. 1,384 1,449
Other accrued liabilities................ o 704 99
Current portion of long-term debt................~ ... 1,461 3,782
Total current liabilities.................. ... 17,917 20,156
LONG-TERM DEBT, less current portion............... . ... 33,395 42,910
DEFERRED COMPENSATION......ccoooiiviiiiiiieeeees e, 739 739
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES....cccoocviiiiiiiiieeeee v, 479 563
EQUITY SUBJECT TO REDEMPTION:
Series A preferred stock, 1,122 shares........... . ... 112 112
Common stock, 140,214 shares......ccccccceeeeee. 1,963 1,245
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Series A preferred stock, 1/10th vote per share; $1.00 par
value; liquidation preference of $100 per share ;
1,000,000 shares authorized, 2,992 shares issue dand
outstanding.......ccooevviiiiiiiieeeees 2 2
Series B convertible preferred stock, 1/10th vote per
share; $1.00 par value; $100 stated value; liqu idation
preference of $100 per share; 1,000,000 shares
authorized, 17,700 shares issued and 15,000 sha res
outstanding.......occvveeiviiiiieiieeees 18 18
Common stock, $.01 par value, 100,000,000 shares
authorized; 4,211,010 shares issued of which 4, 157,361
and 4,155,773 shares are outstanding, 140,214 s hares are
equity subject to redemption and 55,237 shares are
treasury StOCK.....oooovvvevvsciiieeviies 40 40
Paid-in capital........ - 892 908
Retained earnings......cccccceveeeeevevevieeeeeee 12,659 15,443
Treasury StoCK......cccoovveviviiiiiiieiieeeee (580) (804)
Total shareholders' equity................ . ... 13,031 15,607
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity ... $67,636 $81,332

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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DXP ENTERPRISES, INC., AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

1996 1997 1998

SALES. ..o $125,208 $169,667 $203,443
COST OF SALES......ooiiiiiiveiieeieeeeeeee 93,091 124,787 149,423
Gross profit.....cccccvveveeeeveenen. 32,117 44,880 54,020
SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES....... ... 29,332 38,446 46,570
Operating inCoMe......ccccceveveeeeeeees 2,785 6,434 7,450
OTHER INCOME.......ccocoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiesceeeee 951 890 1,241
INTEREST EXPENSE......ccooooiiiiiiiiieiieeieeeee . (2,101) (2,654) (3,687)
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES......ccccoovvviiieeneee v, 1,635 4,670 5,004
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES......ccccocemvivenees v, 745 1,902 2,130
NET INCOME......coooiiiiiiiiii e, 890 2,768 2,874
PREFERRED STOCK DIVIDEND.......ccccccoveniieneees e, (119) (103) (90)
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO COMMON SHAREHOLDERS.............. $ 771 $ 2,665 $ 2,784
BASIC EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE........cccccveeee. . $ 19 $ 65 % .67
COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING.....ccccoeviieiiieeees e 3,997 4,082 4,159
DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE.......ccccocevvicnee e, $ 18 $ 49 $ 51
COMMON AND COMMON EQUIVALENT SHARES OUTSTANDING......... 4,857 5,703 5,596

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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DXP ENTERPRISES, INC., AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE AMOUNTS)

SERIESA SERIESB COMMON PAID-IN RETAINE
PREFERRED PREFERRED STOCK CAPITAL EARNING

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 1995.... $2 $15 $40 $408 $9,223
Dividends paid..........cccooeeviiiieniieennns - - - - (119
Net inCOMe.......coocvvveviiiiieeiiec e - - - - 890
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 1996... 2 15 40 408 9,994

Dividends paid..........ccccoeeviiiienniennnns - - - - (103
Increase in paid-in capital due to reduction of

equity subject to redemption as a result of

acquiring 374 shares of Series A preferred

Increase in paid-in capital due to reduction of

equity subject to redemption as a result of

acquiring 2,700 shares of Series B preferred

SEOCK. .ttt - 3 - 268 -
Increase in paid-in capital due to reduction of

equity subject to redemption as a result of

converting 1,800 shares of Series B preferred

stock to 50,400 shares of common stock........ - - 1 179 -
Acquisition of 30,436 shares of common stock.... - - 1) -- -
Net iNCOME.........ovvvvverirevrreerriiriinnnns - - -- -- 2,768

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 1997......c.ccccevvvnnenne 2 18 40 892
Dividends paid..........ccccoeeviiiieniinennns - - - - (90
Increase in paid-in capital due to issuance of

21,200 shares of common stock based on options

EXErCISEM.....cccvieiiiiieiiie e - - - 16 -
Acquisition of 21,500 shares of common stock.... - - -- -- --
Acquisition of 3,301 shares of common stock..... - - -- - --
Net iNCOME.........ovvvvvevvreerriirriiriiinnns - - -- -- 2,874

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 1998............c..oe.. $2 $18 $40  $908

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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DXP ENTERPRISES, INC., AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(IN THOUSANDS)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

1996 1997 1998

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

NetinCOMEe....covveiiiiiii e $ 890 $ 2,768 $ 2,874
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash p rovided
by operating activities --
Depreciation and amortization..........c....... .. 964 1,341 1,820
Compensation expense related to stock option p lans... 359 -
Benefit for deferred income taxes............. .. (216) (62) (64)

Loss (gain) on sale of property and equipment. ... 7 (103) 47
Changes in operating assets and liabilities --

Trade accounts receivable..........cccceeee. L (1,233) (7,971) 5,484

INVENONIES. v (469) 2,899 (142)
Prepaid expenses and other........cccooeee.. L 274 (640) (1,237)
Trade accounts payable and accrued liabiliti es..... (123) 1,892 (3,121)

Net cash provided by operating activites ... 453 124 5,661

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of Austin Bearings net assets........... ... (329) -- -
Purchase of Strategic Supply net assets.......... ... - (4,118) --
Purchase of Pelican Supply common stock.......... . ... - (1,070) --
Purchase of Tri-Electric Supply net assets....... ... - - (6,109)
Purchase of Lucky Electric Supply net assets..... ... - - (2,430)
Purchase of Mark W. Smith Equipment net assets... ... - - (3,938)
Purchase of property and equipment.......cc..... . ... (2,271) (825) (3,859)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment..... ... 8 -- 26
Payments received on notes receivable from office rs..... 435 - -
Other. i (120) -- -

Net cash used in investing activities.... ... (2,277) (6,013) (16,310)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Borrowings fromdebt...........ooovviviceeee. L 129,379 183,715 219,011
Principal payments on revolving line of credit,
long-term and subordinated debt and notes paya ble to
bank.....cocoiviiiiiie (128,052) (177,395) (207,175)
Proceeds on sale of Corpus Christi facility...... ... - 112 --
Issuance of common stocK........ccocevevvvceee. L - - 16
Acquisition of preferred and common stock........ ... - (580) (224)
Dividends paid in cash........ccccooceevvvceeeee. L (119) (103) (90)

Net cash provided by financing activites ... 1,208 5,749 11,538

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH...coovvovovceccee e, (616)  (140) 889
CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR ..o, 1,492 876 736

CASH AT END OF YEAR......coccviiiiiiiiieiieeees . $ 876 $ 736 $ 1,625

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH INVESTING AND
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Cash paid for --

Interest.....ccocveiiiiiiiiiieies $ 2172 $ 2,654 $ 3,687

INCOME taXES...ccvvevvveeiieevie e $ 1,040 $ 1,551 $ 2,986

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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DXP ENTERPRISES, INC., AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
BASIS OF PRESENTATION

DXP Enterprises, Inc. (DXP or the Company), a Teo@poration, was incorporated on July 26, 1996atditate a reorganization of SEPCO
Industries, Inc. (SEPCO), a Texas corporationniicgpation of an acquisition by DXP as the sucoess SEPCO of Newman
Communications Corporation (Newman), a New Mexiomoration. On December 4, 1996, the reorganizatfEPCO (the SEPCO
Reorganization) was effected through a mergenaiially owned subsidiary of the Company with an@iBEPCO pursuant to which the
Company acquired all of the outstanding shares=6f@0 in exchange for shares of the Company. Imneditollowing the SEPCO
Reorganization, the Company acquired Newman threugterger of a wholly owned subsidiary of the Conypaith and into Newman (the
Newman Merger). Prior to the SEPCO Reorganizatioem Company had no operations and its only assetsisted of $1,000 cash. Prior

the Company's acquisition of Newman, Newman wasr®perating entity with nominal assets. The NewiManger was effected as a means
to increase the Company's shareholder base.

SEPCO REORGANIZATION ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

The SEPCO Reorganization was treated as a redagitah of SEPCO into the Company (with respedhtonSEPCO merger) and the
issuance of the Company's capital stock for thesthpithg tangible net assets of Newman (with respethhe Newman Merger) for accounting
and financial statement purposes because, amoegfatttors, the Company was a recently formed hgldompany with nominal net assets,
Newman was a nonoperating public shell company vagh as its primary asset, and the SEPCO shaeghaldntrolled the Company af

the SEPCO Reorganization. Accordingly, the hisarre-SEPCO Reorganization financial statemente@tombined Company after the
closing will be those of SEPCO. The retained egimiof SEPCO will be carried forward after the SEPREdrganization and the historical
shareholders' equity of SEPCO prior to the SEPCardaization is retroactively restated for the gglant number of shares received in the
SEPCO Reorganization.

Unless the context otherwise requires, referercéset Company with respect to historical operatigmsl mean the Company and SEPCO.
PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The accompanying consolidated financial statemientade the accounts of the Company and its wholiyed subsidiaries. All significant
intercompany accounts and transactions have baamated in consolidation.

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Company provides maintenance, repair and apgratoducts, equipment and integrated servicesding engineering expertise and
logistics capabilities to a diversified customesdan the north and southwestern regions of théedr$tates. The Company believes no
significant concentration of credit risk exists.eT@ompany continually evaluates the creditworttsrasts customers' financial positions and
monitors accounts on a periodic basis, but doesauptire collateral.

INVENTORY

Inventory consists principally of finished goodslas priced at lower of cost or market, cost baletermined using both the first-in, first-out
(FIFO) and the last-in, first-out (LIFO) method.
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DXP ENTERPRISES, INC., AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -- (CONT INUED)
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Assets are carried on the basis of cost. Providmndepreciation are computed at rates considerée sufficient to amortize the costs of
assets over their expected useful lives. Deprexiaif property, plant and equipment is computedgiprincipally the straighline method fo
financial reporting purposes. Useful lives assigteedroperty, plant and equipment range from 3%g@&ars. Maintenance and repairs of
depreciable assets are charged against earnimgsuaied. Additions and improvements are capitaliz&hen properties are retired or
otherwise disposed of, the cost and accumulatededigion are removed from the accounts and gaitssees are credited or charged to
earnings.

INTANGIBLES

Intangibles consist of noncompete and licensingemients and goodwill. The noncompete and liceragngements are amortized over five
years, and goodwill is amortized over 5 to 35 yeAlisamortization of intangibles is computed usihg straigt-line method.

FEDERAL INCOME TAXES

The Company utilizes the asset and liability methogscribed by SFAS No. 109 in accounting for inedaxes. Under this method, deferred
taxes are determined based on differences betvirggamncfal reporting and tax bases of assets anditied and are measured using the enacted
marginal tax rates and laws that will be in eff@ben the differences reverse.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
A summary of the carrying and the fair value offigial instruments at December 31, 1998, is aevisl

CARRYING FAIR
VALUE VALUE

(IN THOUSANDS)

CaSh..iiiiii e $1,625 $1,625
Notes receivable from officers and employees....... ... 324 324
Long-term debt, including current portion......... ... 46,692 46,692

The carrying value of the notes receivable fronicefs approximates fair value because the intea¢stof the notes (9 percent) is consistent
with the interest rate of the Company's revolviefptdand with rates currently available in the mafi&esimilar instruments. The carrying
value of the long-term debt approximates fair vdlased upon the current rates and terms availaltheetCompany for instruments with
similar remaining maturities.

REVENUE RECOGNITION
The Company recognizes revenue as products arpezhtp the customer.
USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith generally accepted accounting principleguiees the Company to make estimates
and assumptions in determining the reported amafrassets and liabilities and disclosure of caygim assets and liabilities at the date o
financial statements and the reported amountsvefmges and expenses during the reporting periog sigmificant estimates made by the
Company in the accompanying financial statemerigse¢o the allowance for doubtful accounts anémess for obsolete inventory. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.
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DXP ENTERPRISES, INC., AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -- (CONT INUED)
RECLASSIFICATIONS
Certain 1996 and 1997 amounts have been reclabsifieonform with the 1998 presentation.
2. NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS:

In June 1997, the FASB issued SFAS Nos. 130 and"R¥porting Comprehensive Income," and "Disclosukbout Segments of an
Enterprise and Related Information," respectivélye major provisions of these statements and timgiact on the Company are discussed
below.

SFAS No. 130 requires the presentation of compigkierincome in an entity's financial statementan@ehensive income represents all
changes in equity of an entity during the reporfiegiod, including net income and charges diretctlgquity which are excluded from net
income. This statement does not have any impatieaSompany currently does not enter into any aetsns which result in charges (or
credits) directly to equity (such as additional miom pension liability charges, currency translatimjustments or unrealized gains and
losses on available-for-sale securities, etc.).

SFAS No. 131 provides revised disclosure guidelfoesegments of an enterprise based on a managememach to defining operating
segments. The Company currently operates in orgyimagustry segment and analyzes operations on aaynwide basis; therefore, the
adoption of the statement as of December 31, 1888 dot materially impact the Company.

In June 1998, SFAS No. 133, "Accounting for Derlivatnstruments and Hedging Activities," was issSUBHAS No. 133 establishes
accounting and reporting standards for derivatinstruments, including certain derivative instrunseginbedded in other contracts
(collectively referred to as derivatives), and iedging activities. It requires that an entity igtiae all derivatives as either assets or liabd

in the statement of financial position and measiiwse instruments at fair value. If certain comaisi are met, a derivative may be specifically
designated as (a) a hedge of the exposure to chamgee fair value of a recognized asset or lighidr an unrecognized firm commitment,

a hedge to the exposure to variable cash flowsfofexasted transaction or (c) a hedge of thedareurrency exposure of a net investment in
a foreign operation, an unrecognized firm committnan available-for-sale security or a foreign enaydenominated forecasted transact
The accounting for changes in the fair value oéavétive (that is, gains or losses) depends orntiemded use of the derivative and the
resulting designation. SFAS No. 133 is effectivedlb fiscal quarters of fiscal years beginningeaflune 15, 1999. Management does not
believe that the adoption of this statement willdha material impact on the financial positione@sults of operations of the Company.

3. ACQUISITIONS:

Effective February 2, 1996, SEPCO acquired theassets of Austin Bearing Corporation. The purclmi®e totaled approximately $578,000
and consisted of

(a) a $249,000 note, bearing interest at 9 perpaygable monthly over five years, and (b) cash32%000. The acquisition has been
accounted for using the purchase method of acanyimBoodwill of $84,000 was recorded in connectigth the acquisition. Pro forma
disclosures of operating results are omitted bexthes acquired companies' operations were notfgignt.

Effective May 30, 1997, the Company acquired 10@¢m@ of the outstanding stock of Pelican Statep§u@ompany (Pelican). The purchase
price totaled approximately $3.0 million and cotesilsof 140,214 shares of the Company's common stedlcash of approximately $1.0
million. The acquisition has been accounted fongishe purchase method of accounting. Goodwillppraximately $2.0 million was

recorded in connection with the acquisition. Pnorfa disclosures of operating results are omittedhbge the acquired companies' operations
were not significant.
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DXP ENTERPRISES, INC., AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -- (CONT INUED)

On June 2, 1997, a wholly owned subsidiary of thenffany acquired substantially all the assets @aft&gic Supply, Inc. (Strategic). The
purchase price, which is subject to adjustmentssisted of approximately $4.1 million in cash, asption of $4.7 million of trade payables
and other accrued expenses, $2.8 million in prasnyssotes payable to the seller and earn-out patgr(based on the earnings before interest
and taxes of Strategic) to be paid over a periagppfoximately six years, up to a maximum of $3ilian. The acquisition has been
accounted for using the purchase method of acazginBoodwill of $50,000 was recorded in connectigit the acquisition.

On February 26, 1998, a wholly owned subsidiarthefCompany acquired substantially all the asdetsi<Electric Supply, Ltd. (Tri-

Electric). The purchase price consisted of $6.2ianilin cash, assumption of $1.6 million of tradeypbles and other accrued expenses and a
deferred payment of up to a maximum of $275,008eti@n the earnings before interest, taxes anedegtion of the acquired company, to
be paid on March 31, 1999, if earned. The acqaisitias been accounted for using the purchase meftamtounting. Goodwill of $3.9

million was recorded in connection with the acdiosi.

On May 31, 1998, a wholly owned subsidiary of th@@any acquired substantially all the assets okl ilectric & Supply, Inc. (Lucky).
The purchase price consisted of approximately 8iillon in cash, a $735,000 promissory note andabsumption of $149,000 of trade
payables and other accrued expenses. The acquikambeen accounted for using the purchase meftaatounting. Goodwill of $0.6
million was recorded in connection with the acdiosi.

Effective May 31, 1998, a wholly owned subsidiafytee Company acquired substantially all the asseld.W. Smith Equipment, Inc.
(Smith). The purchase price consisted of approxétgai4.2 million in cash and the assumption of $6@8 of trade payables and other
accrued expenses. The acquisition has been acddiantesing the purchase method of accounting. @dbdf $2.7 million was recorded in
connection with the acquisition.

The Company is continuing the evaluation of theu&itions described above as it relates to thelmse price allocation. The allocation of
the purchase price is based on the best estimfitee Gompany using information currently availalifertain estimates relating to these
acquisitions are subject to change based uporirthedetermination of the fair values of the netedis acquired.

The results of operations of all acquisitions aduded since the date of acquisition in the histdffinancial statements. The following table
presents selected unaudited consolidated finaim@mation for the Company on a pro forma basgiasng all acquisitions had occurred
January 1, 1997 and January 1, 1998 (in thousamdspt per share amounts). The pro forma informagét forth below is not necessarily
indicative of the results that actually would hdeen achieved had such transaction been consumamtgdlanuary 1, 1997 and January 1,
1998, or that may be achieved in the future.

DECEMBER 31

(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT
SHARE AMOUNTS)
(UNAUDITED)

REVENUES....viiiiiieiie e $220,565 $210,803
NetinCOMe.....covviiiiiiiiiiiie e 3,464 3,150
Basic earnings per share.......cccccccceevvveeeeee. . .82 74
Dilutive earnings per share.........ccccceeeeeeeee. . .61 .56
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DXP ENTERPRISES, INC., AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -- (CONT INUED)

4. INVENTORY:

The Company uses the LIFO method of inventory wadador approximately 61 percent of its inventgti®@emaining inventories are
accounted for using the FIFO method. The recortimhieof FIFO inventory to LIFO basis is as follows:

DECEMBER 31

1997 1998

(IN THOUSANDS)
Finished goods........ccocovvviiiiniiieeee. $27,280 $29,717
WOrK in proCess......ccoevvvvvviicciiiiiiieeennes 2,276 3,093
Inventories at FIFO.......cocoveveiiviieeecieeee 29,556 32,810
Less -- LIFO allowance.........ccccceevvveeeeneeee L. (3,538) (3,884)
INVENLONIES. ...vveivee e $26,018 $28,926

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT:

Property, plant and equipment are comprised ofdhewing:

DECEMBER 31

1997 1998

(IN THOUSANDS)
2= oo PP $1411 $ 1,837
Buildings and leasehold improvements................ ... 6,457 9,048
Furniture, fixtures and equipment........ccccceee.. .. 11,660 12,745

19,528 23,630
Less -- Allowances for depreciation and amortizatio N (9,125) (10,470)

$10,403 $ 13,160

6. LONG-TERM DEBT:

Long-term and subordinated notes consist of tHeviahg:

DECEMBER 31

(IN THOUSANDS)

Long-term debt --
Credit facility:

Working capital component..........cccceeee.. L $27,520 $24,895

Term loan component.......ccocceevvcveeeeenee . - 14,933
Note payable to insurance company, 10.125%, colla teralized

by real property, payable in monthly installme nts

through December 2006...........ccccoeeeeeee. Ll 1,596 1,481
Notes payable to credit corporation, 2.25% above prime

(7.75% at December 31, 1998), collateralized b y

computer equipment, payable in monthly install ments

through April 2001.......cccovvevviieeeeee 1,174 853
Promissory note payable, 7.0% payable in monthly

installments through June 2002................. ... 2,660 2,380
Other. .o 1,906 2,150
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Under the Company's loan agreements with its bamitdr (the "Credit Facility"), all available castgienerally applied to reduce outstanding
borrowings, with operations funded through borraysimnder the Credit Facility. The Credit Facilipntains customary affirmative and
negative covenants as well as financial covenduatsrequire the Company to maintain a positive ¢tstand other financial ratios. The
Company had $4.3 million available for borrowingslar the working capital component of the Credilitg at December 31, 1998. The
Company had no availability under the acquisitiemt loan component of the Credit Facility at Decentil, 1998.

In the second and again in the fourth quarter 88]18he Company amended the Credit Facility thavipled for borrowings up to an
aggregate of the lesser of (i) a percentage ofdtateral value based on a formula set forth tihhesiad (ii) $50.0 million. Additionally, the
amendments increased borrowings under the termdoaponent of the Credit Facility from $4.9 milliem$12.4 million upon conversion of
$5.0 million of the amounts outstanding under #alving loan component to the term loan and addeddditional $2.5 million term loan
which has been used for the purchase and renovattiaal property to serve as the Company's cotpdreadquarters.

As of December 31, 1998, interest rates ranged friBOR plus 1.50 to LIBOR plus 3.00 depending uploa relationship of the Company's
debt to cash flow and financial covenants tieddabtaervice levels and cash flow. At December 9981 the Company had borrowings under
the Credit Facility of $19.9 million at LIBOR pl&00 (approximately 7.35% at December 31, 1998¢. rfEimainder of the Company's
borrowings under the Credit Facility bore interaisprime (7.75% at December 31, 1998) for a weifjateerage interest rate of 7.55%.
Borrowings under the Credit Facility are secureddneivables, inventory, and machinery and equipraed mature January 2000. An offi
shareholder has personally guaranteed up to $50@f e obligations of the Company under a linereflit. Additionally, certain shares

held in trust for this shareholder's children désad in Note 8 are also pledged to secure thiofigeadit. In management's opinion, the
Company should be able to maintain compliance thighvarious covenants under the amended Credilitifaalthough there can be no
absolute assurance that defaults will not occur.

The facility includes loan covenants which, amotiteothings, require the Company to maintain atp@stash flow and other financial
ratios, which are measured quarterly. The matgritidong-term debt for the next five years anddhéer are as follows (in thousands):

As of December 31, 1998, the Company was not inptiamce with certain of its financial ratios for igh it subsequently obtained waivers
from its lender. In conjunction with obtaining tleowaivers, the Company and its lender amended ribaitG-acility effective March 30, 199
which now provides for borrowings up to an aggregstthe lesser of (i) a percentage of the cokdteslue based on a formula set forth
therein and (ii) $44.0 million. Additionally, thelBOR pricing, set to expire as of June 30, 199% wancelled and therefore all of the
borrowings under the Credit Facility will bear irgst at prime. As of March 22, 1999, the unuseel linder the amended Credit Facility is
approximately $3.0 million.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -- (CONT INUED)

7. INCOME TAXES:
The provision for income taxes consists of theofwlhg:

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

1996 1997 1998

(IN THOUSANDS)

Current --

Federal . $829 $1,652 $1,794

State..ioiiie e 132 312 400
961 1,964 2,194

Deferred --

Federal....cccoovvveeiiiiiee i, (216) (62) (64)

$745 $1,902 $2,130

The difference between income taxes computed detleral statutory income tax rate and the prowi$tm income taxes is as follows:

YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31

1996 1997 1998
(IN THOUSANDS)
Income taxes computed at federal statutory rate.... ... $556 $1,588 $1,701
State income taxes, net of federal benefit......... .. 68 206 264
......... 43 63 92
......... 78 45 73

$745 $1,902 $2,130

The net current and noncurrent components of deféncome taxes are as follows:

DECEMBER 31

1997 1998
(IN THOUSANDS)
Net current @ssets.......cccccovvveeeeevvveeeeee $722 $870
Net noncurrent liabilities........ccccccceeeeeee. L 479 563

Net asSet.....ccovviiieiiiiiiiiiiiii e
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Deferred tax liabilities and assets were compridetie following:

DECEMBER 31

1997 1998

Deferred tax assets --

Amortization of goodwill.........ccooceeeeeeee L 5 2
Unamortized rent reduction............ceeeeeeeee. L 32 22
Allowance for doubtful accounts.......ccccoceee.. .. 162 277
Section 263A inventory COStS......ccccceeeeeeees 206 313
Deferred compensation on stock options........... ... 251 251
Othel e 66 5
Total deferred tax assets......cccceeeeee. L 722 870

Deferred tax liability --

Difference between financial and tax depreciation of
assets acquired.........cooeveveevveeeeee. $479 $563
Net deferred tax asset......ccccceeeeeeee. Ll $(243) $(307)

8. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY:

The equity capitalization of the Company consi$t4,811,010 shares of common stock of which 140@2%®4redeemable, 2,992 shares of
Series A preferred stock and 15,000 shares Sertemizertible preferred stock. The holders of Sefigseferred stock are entitled to one-
tenth of a vote per share on all matters presentad/ote of shareholders generally, voting asasclith the holders of common stock, and
are not entitled to any dividends or distributiatiser than in the event of a liquidation of the Qamy, in which case the holders of the Series
A preferred stock are entitled to a $100 liquidatmweference per share. Each share of the Seiwes&rtible preferred stock is convertible
into 28 shares of common stock and a monthly divideer share of $.50. The holders of the Seriesr®ertible stock are also entitled to a
$100 liguidation preference per share after payroetite distributions to the holders of the SeAgsreferred stock and to one-tenth of a vote
per share on all matters presented to a vote oébbklers generally, voting as a class with thelérd of the common stock.

In each of 1997 and 1998, the Company effectecbatdaone reverse stock split. The Company's fir@ratatements have been restated to
reflect the effect of these reverse stock splits.

An officer shareholder of the Company is the tresi€three trusts for the benefit of another offiskkareholder's children, each of which hold
570,932 shares of common stock and 5,000 shar@srafs B convertible preferred stock. The trus&sedole voting control of these shares.

The 140,214 shares of common stock issued pursoiéime purchase of Pelican are subject to a pubopthereby at any time between
November 30, 1998, and November 30, 2000, the Coynpeay be required to purchase all or part of skdres at a price of $8.88 per sh
During 1998, the repurchase price of these shaassreduced from $14.00 to $8.88 per share pursodhe rights of offset set forth in the
purchase agreement. The reduction in the repurgiracsehas been reflected as a $718,000 reductigoamwill and equity subject to
redemption. In March 1999, the Company agreedpgarahase 80,214 of these common shares at $8.&hamr. Furthermore, as a part of
this repurchase, the remaining 60,000 shares odlistare no longer subject to the put option.

On July 17, 1998, the Company entered into a gpockhase agreement with a common shareholder. dhwény has agreed to purchase
43,000 shares for a total of $401,000 over twaalisents. On September 1, 1998, the Company puednaise-half of the shares in exchange
for $200,500. The remainder of the shares will becpased after January 1, 1999, but no later thaa 1, 1999, in exchange for $200,500.
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STOCK OPTIONS

Prior to and during 1995, the Company issued ndifggeh book value plan stock options to certaifiag#rs of the Company to purchase
shares of its common stock, which had exercisepragjual to the book value of the common stockeatiite of grant. The option agreement
allows the employee to put the stock acquired lhatcke Company at the book value at that time. Thmpany recognized compensation
expense for increases in the book value of thekstdile the options were outstanding. Effective MtaB1, 1996, the above-mentioned book
value options were converted to fair market valpgams once the put option was eliminated. A ongetcharge to compensation of $618,000
was made during the first quarter of 1996. In 1986,Company issued nonqualified stock optionsttain directors of the Company to
purchase shares of its common stock which had iseepcices equal to the fair market value of thenBany's common stock at the date of
grant. Additionally, the Company issued optionséatain officers and employees pursuant to thesarthe Company's long-term incentive
plan. Compensation expense related to these opgements of $618,000 was recorded in 1996 anelwere recorded in 1997 and 1998.
As of December 31, 1997 and 1998, a deferred cosatiem liability of $739,000, has been recordedadnjunction with these option
agreements. Activity during 1998 with respect t® $iock options follows:

WEIGHTED
OPTION AVERAGE
S HARES PRICE PER SHARE EXERCISE PRICE

Outstanding at December 31, 1996............... 1, 349,700 $1.48-$16.00 $1.50

None granted, exercised, cancelled or expired

during 1997.....coociviiiiiieeeeees -- - -

Outstanding at December 31, 1997............... 1, 349,700 $1.48-$16.00 $1.50

Granted........ccoeevveieeiiiiiee s 265,000 $7.50-$12.00 $10.79

EXercised......cccovvieiiiiiiiiienieens (21,200) $.76 $ .76

Canceled or expired............ccccve.eee. (20,500) $10.66 $10.66
Outstanding at December 31, 1998............... 1, 573,000 $1.48-$16.00 $3.32

The outstanding options at December 31, 1998, exygtween March 31, 2000, and October 24, 20080 alays after termination of fulime

employment. The weighted average remaining contehdfe was 6.9 years, 5.9 years and 4.8 yeabeaember 31, 1996, 1997 and 1998,
respectively.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

SFAS No. 128 requires the presentation of basiciegs per share and diluted earnings per shaiaandial statements of public enterprises
rather than primary and fully diluted earnings gleare as previously required. Under the provisairikis statement, basic earnings per share
is computed based on weighted average sharesmiitgjeand excludes dilutive securities. Dilutednéags per share is computed including
the impacts of all potentially dilutive securiti@e following table sets forth the shares outstamébr the earnings per share calculations for
the years ended December 31, 1996, 1997 and 1998:
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YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

1996 1997 1998

Common stock outstanding, beginning of period...... ... 3,996,974 3,996,974 4,157,361
Weighted average common stock issued in stock optio n

EXEICISE . iiiiiciiie e -- - 15,150
Weighted average common stock issued in acquisiton ... -- 93,476
Less: weighted average treasury shares repurchased. ... -~ (13,095) (13,192)
Weighted average common stock issued in conversion of

preferred StOCK......uvvvvvveveveeieeniiiiiieeee -- 4,200
Shares used in computing basic earnings per share.. ... 3,996,974 4,081,555 4,159,319
Dilutive effect of stock options, net of assumed re purchase

of treasury StOCK......ccouvvvvveveveneaeeaens 313,559 1,138,321 1,016,430
Dilutive effect of convertible preferred stock..... ... 546,000 482,854 420,000
Shares used in computing diluted earnings per share ... 4,856,533 5,702,730 5,595,749

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

Pro forma information regarding net income and ie@sper share is required by SFAS No. 123 andbas determined as if the Company
had accounted for its stock options under theviaine method as provided therein. The fair valueawfh option grant is estimated on the date
of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing mlogith the following weighted average assumptiossd for options issued in 1996, 1997
and 1998: risk-free interest rates of 6 percenflfi®6, 1997 and 1998; expected lives of five yeE8s4 percent assumed volatility; and no
expected dividends.

For purposes of pro forma disclosures, the estidnfatie value of the options is amortized to expemser the options' vesting period. Set forth
below is a summary of the Company's net incomeeamdings per share as reported and pro formatlas fair value-based method of
accounting defined in SFAS No. 123 had been applibd pro forma information is not meant to be espntative of the effects on reported
net income for future years because, as providegH#®yS No. 123, only the effects of awards granfeet danuary 1, 1995, are considered in
the pro forma calculation. Certain compensatioreesp related to the Company's book value stockmpians was recognized in 1996. The
effect of such expense ($618,000) has been exclindetdthe pro forma disclosure for 1996, as thatezl options are assumed to be
accounted for using the fair market-based methatobunting as defined in SFAS No. 123. The eféeipplying the fair market-based
method versus the exclusion of the book value-bassttiod expense actually recognized resulted o dopma increase in net income
attributable to common shareholders in 1996.

1996 1997 1998
AS REPORTED P RO FORMA AS REPORTED PRO FORMA AS REPORTED PRO FORMA
Net income attributable to common
shareholders (in thousands)..... $771 $1,132 $2,665 $2,620 $2,784 $2,616
Basic earnings per common share... $.19 $ .28 $ .65 $ .64 $ .67 $ .63
Diluted earnings per common
share.......cccovieeeiiiinns $.18 $ .26 $ .49 $ .48 $ 51 $ .48
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9. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:

The Company leases equipment, automobiles ancediilities under various operating leases. Theréuminimum rental commitments as
of December 31, 1998, for noncancelable leaseasafellows (in thousands):

Rental expense for operating leases was $1,417%006881,675, $1,949,130 for the years ended Dece®ihel 996, 1997 and 1998,
respectively.

10. RETIREMENT PLANS:

SEPCO provides an employee stock ownership pla@fSvhich is eligible to employees having 1,000rs@f service in 12 consecutive
months of employment. Employer contributions arthatdiscretion of the board of directors. The ES@R 891,241 shares of the Compa
common stock at December 31, 1998. The Companyibated to the ESOP Plan and expensed $150,00096,11997 and 1998. The
Company also offers a 401(k) profit-sharing plandmployees having 1,000 hours of service in 1Zeountive months of employment. The
Company matches contributions at a rate of 10 perdée Company contributed to the 401(k) profarsig-plan $62,000, $81,000 and
$214,000 in the years ended December 31, 1996, 419971998, respectively.

11. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

In December 1989, the Company restructured celdaims previously made by the Company to an offaéehe Company, pursuant to which
the officer executed two promissory notes in th@ants of $149,910 and $58,737, respectively, eaehithg interest at 9 percent per annum.
The outstanding balances of such loans were $12388d $50,080 at December 31, 1997 and 1998, risggc

Additionally, the Company from time to time has raatninterest-bearing advances to this officerof8ecember 31, 1997 and 1998, the
outstanding advances amounted to $340,439 and4320espectively.
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ITEM 9.CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANT S ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.
PART llI

The information required by Part I, Items 10 thgh 13, inclusive, of Form 10-K is hereby incorfiedhby reference from the Company's
Definitive Proxy Statement for the 1999 Annual Megtof Shareholders, which shall be file with thecGrities and Exchange Commission
not later than 120 days after the end of the figeal to which this Annual Report on Form 10-K teta

PART IV
ITEM 14. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES, A ND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K
(A) DOCUMENTS INCLUDED IN THIS REPORT:

1. Financial Statements

PAGE
DXP ENTERPRISES AND SUBSIDIARIES:
Report of Independent Public Accountants............ ... 21
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements
Consolidated Balance Sheets.......cccocooeeeeeee. L 22
Consolidated Statements of Earnings............... ... 23
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity.. ... 24
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows............. ... 25
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements....... ... 26

(B) REPORTS ON FORM 8-K:
None.
(C) EXHIBITS:

Exhibits designated by the symbol * are filed vtitis Annual Report on Form 10-K. All exhibits nat designated are incorporated by
reference to a prior filing as indicated.

Exhibits designated by the symbol + are managegwittacts or compensatory plans or arrangemertsteaequired to be filed with this
report pursuant to this Item 14.

The Company undertakes to furnish to any stockm@deequesting a copy of any of the following éxisi upon payment to the Company of
the reasonable costs incurred by the Company mdfing any such exhibit.

EXHIBIT

NO. DESCRIPTIO N

3.1 -- Restated Articles of Incorporat ion, as amended
(incorporated by reference to E xhibit 4.1 to the
Registrant's Registration State ment On Form S-8 (Reg. No.
333-61953), filed with the Comm ission on August 20,

1998).

3.2 -- Bylaws (incorporated by referen ce Exhibit 3.2 to the
Registrant's Registration State ment on Form S-4 (Reg. No.
333-10021), filed with the Comm ission on August 12,

1996).

4.1 -- Form of Common Stock certificat e (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Registrant's Registration
Statement on Form S-8 (Reg. No. 333-61953), filed with
the Commission on August 20, 19 98)
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EXHIBIT
NO. DESCRIPTIO
4.2 -- See Exhibit 3.1 for provisions
Articles of Incorporation, as a
rights of the holders of Common

4.3 -- See Exhibit 3.2 for provisions
defining the rights of holders
+10.1 -- DXP Enterprises, Inc. Long Term

amended (incorporated by refere
Registrant's Registration State
333-61953), filed with the Comm
1998).
+10.2 -- Stock Option Agreement dated ef
between SEPCO Industries, Inc.
(incorporated by reference to t
Registration Statement on Form
filed with the Commission on Au
+10.3 -- Stock Option Agreement dated ef
between SEPCO Industries, Inc.
(incorporated by reference to t
Registration Statement on Form
filed with the Commission on Au
+10.4 -- Stock Option Agreement dated ef
between SEPCO Industries, Inc.
(incorporated by reference to t
Registration Statement on Form
filed with the Commission on Au
+10.5 -- Amended and Restated Stock Opti
effective as of March 31, 1996,
Inc. and Jerry J. Jones (incorp
Registrant's Registration State
333-10021), filed with the Comm
1996).
+10.6 -- Amended and Restated Stock Opti
effective as of March 31, 1996,
Inc. and Bryan H. Wimberly (inc
the Registrant's Registration S
No. 333-10021), filed with the
1996).
+10.7 -- Amended and Restated Stock Opti
effective as of March 31, 1996,
Inc. and David R. Little (incor
the Registrant's Registration S
No. 333-10021), filed with the
1996).
+10.8 -- Employment Agreement dated effe
between SEPCO Industries, Inc.
(incorporated by reference to E
Registrant's Registration State
333-53387), filed with the Comm
+10.9 -- Employment Agreement dated as o
SEPCO Industries, Inc. and Jerr
Amendment to Employment Agreeme
1998 (incorporated by reference
Registrant's Registration State
333-53387), filed with the comm
+10.10 -- Employment Agreement dated as o
SEPCO Industries, Inc. and Brya
by Amendment to Employment Agre
21, 1998 and Amendment to Emplo
effective June 30, 1998 (incorp
Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’
10-Q for the quarterly period e
with the Commission on August 1
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EXHIBIT
NO.

+10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

DESCRIPTIO
-- Employment Agreement dated as o

SEPCO Industries, Inc. and Gary
Amendment to Employment Agreeme
1998 (incorporated by reference
Registrant's Registration State
333-53387), filed with the Comm
-- Second Amended and Restated Loa
dated effective as of April 1,
Barclays Business Credit, Inc.
Inc., as amended by First Amend
Restated Loan and Security Agre
Promissory Note dated May, 1995
Industries, Inc. and Shawmut Ca
successor-in-interest by assign
Credit, Inc., as amended by Sec
Amended and Restated Loan and S
April 3, 1996, by and between S
Fleet Capital Corporation, form
Capital Corporation, as amended
Second Amended and Restated Loa
dated September 9, 1996, by and
Inc. and Bayou Pumps, Inc. and
as amended by Fourth Amendment
Restated Loan and Security Agre
1996, by and between SEPCO Indu
Inc. and Fleet Capital Corporat
Letter Agreement dated November
Capital Corporation to SEPCO In
Pumps, Inc. and American MRO, |
reference to Amendment No. 4 to
Registration Statement on Form
filed with the Commission on No
-- Fifth Amendment to Second Amend
Security Agreement dated June 2
Industries, Inc., Bayou Pumps,
and Fleet Capital Corporation (
to Exhibit 10.1 to Amendment No
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q o
Quarterly period ended June 30,
Commission on November 17, 1997
-- Sixth Amendment to Second Amend
Security Agreement and Amendmen
dated April 29, 1998, by And am
Inc., Bayou Pumps, Inc. and Ame
Capital Corporation (incorporat
10.1 to the Registrant's Quarte
filed with the Commission on Ma
-- Seventh Amendment to Second Ame
Security Agreement dated June 3
Sepco Industries, Inc., Bayou P
Inc. and Fleet Capital Corporat
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to th
Report on Form 10-Q for the qua
30, 1997, filed with the Commis
-- Eighth Amendment to Second Amen
Security Agreement dated Octobe
Sepco Industries, Inc., Bayou P
Inc. and Fleet Capital Corporat
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to th
Report on Form 10-Q for the qua
September 30, 1997, filed with
13, 1998).
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EXHIBIT
NO.

10.18

10.19

10.20

+10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

DESCRIPTIO

-- Promissory Note dated December
principal amount of $149,910.00
and payable to SEPCO Industries
reference to the Registrant's R
Form S-4 (Reg. No. 333-10021),
on August 12, 1996).

-- Promissory Note dated December
principal amount of $58,737.00,
and payable to SEPCO Industries
reference to the Registrant's R
Form S-4 (Reg. No. 333-10021),
on August 12, 1996).

-- Vehicle Lease Agreement dated J
between World Omni Financial Co
Inc. (incorporated by reference
Registration Statement on Form
filed with the Commission on Au
-- Real Estate Note dated November
Engine & Pump Company, payable
Southwestern Life Insurance Com
reference to the Registrant's R
Form S-4 (Reg. No. 333-10021),
on August 12, 1996).

-- SEPCO Industries, Inc. Employee
(incorporated by reference to A
Registrant's Registration State
333-10021), filed with the Comm
1996).

-- Amendment No. Two to SEPCO Indu
Stock Ownership Plan (incorpora
Exhibit 10.38 to the Registrant

10-K, filed with the Commission

-- Amendment No. Three to SEPCO In
Stock Ownership Plan (incorpora
Exhibit 10.39 to the Registrant

10-K, filed with the Commission

-- Loan and Security Agreement dat
between Fleet Capital Corporati

Inc. d/b/a Strategic Acquisitio
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Am
Registrant's Quarterly Report o

for the quarterly period ended

the Commission on November 17,

-- Amendment to Loan and Security
1998, by and between DXP Acquis
Strategic Acquisition, Inc. and
(incorporated by reference to E
Registrant's Quarterly Report o

the Commission on May 14, 1998)

-- Second Amendment to Loan and Se
October 20, 1998, by and betwee

and Fleet Capital Corporation (

to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registra

Form 10-Q, for the quarterly pe

1998, filed with the Commission
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10.34

DESCRIPTIO
-- Continuing Guaranty Agreement d
Pelican State Supply Company, |
indebtedness of DXP Acquisition
Acquisition, Inc. to Fleet Capi
(incorporated by reference to E
No. 1 to the Registrant's Quart
on Form 10-Q/A for the quarterl
1997, filed with the Commission
-- Continuing Guaranty Agreement d
Enterprises, Inc., guarantying
Acquisition, Inc. d/b/a Strateg
Fleet Capital Corporation (inco
Exhibit 10.4 to Amendment No. 1
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q o
quarterly period ended June 30,
Commission on November 17, 1997
-- Continuing Guaranty Agreement d
Sepco Industries, Inc., guarant
DXP Acquisition, Inc. d/b/a Str
to Fleet Capital Corporation (i
to Exhibit 10.5 to Amendment No
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q o
quarterly period ended June 30,
Commission on November 17, 1997
-- Continuing Guaranty Agreement d
American MRO, Inc., guarantying
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-- Continuing Guaranty Agreement d
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10.39

10.40

10.41

10.42

DESCRIPTIO
-- Continuing Guaranty Agreement d
Acquisition, Inc. d/b/a Strateg
guarantying the indebtedness of
Company, Inc. to Fleet Capital
by reference to Exhibit 10.11 t
Registrant's Quarterly Report o
for the quarterly period ended
the Commission on November 17,
-- Loan and Security Agreement dat
between Fleet Capital Corporati
Supply Company, Inc. (incorpora
Exhibit 10.12 to Amendment No.
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q o
quarterly period ended June 30,
Commission on November 17, 1997
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1998, by and between Pelican St
and Fleet Capital Corporation (
to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registra
Form 10-Q, filed with the Commi
-- Continuing Guaranty Agreement d
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Pelican State Company, Inc. to
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SEPCO Industries, Inc., guarant
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on Form 10-Q on Form 10-Q/A for
ended June 30, 1997, filed with
November 17, 1997).
-- Continuing Guaranty Agreement d
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No. 1 to the Registrant's Quart
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10.44

10.45

*11.1
*21.1
*23.1
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DESCRIPTIO
-- Continuing Guaranty Agreement d
Pelican State Supply Company, |
indebtedness of American MRO, |
Corporation (incorporated by re
to Amendment No. 1 to the Regis
on Form 10-Q on Form 10-Q/A for
ended June 30, 1997, filed with
November 17, 1997).
-- Continuing Guaranty Agreement d
Pelican State Supply Company, |
indebtedness of Bayou Pumps, In
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on Form 10-Q on Form 10-Q/A for
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November 17, 1997).
-- Secured Promissory Note dated A
SEPCO Industries, Inc., Bayou P
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reference to Exhibit 10.4 to th
Report on Form 10-Q for the qua
31, 1998, filed with the Commis
-- Statement re Computation of Per
-- Subsidiaries of the Company.
-- Consent from Arthur Andersen LL
-- Financial Data Schedule.
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-- Second Amended and Restated Loa
dated effective as of April 1,
Barclays Business Credit, Inc.
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Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q o
Quarterly period ended June 30,
Commission on November 17, 1997
-- Sixth Amendment to Second Amend
Security Agreement and Amendmen
dated April 29, 1998, by And am
Inc., Bayou Pumps, Inc. and Ame
Capital Corporation (incorporat
10.1 to the Registrant's Quarte
filed with the Commission on Ma

N

f July 1, 1996, between

y J. Jones, as amended by
nt dated effective May 21,
to Exhibit 10.9 to the

ment on Form S-1 (Reg. No.
ission on May 22, 1998).

f July 1, 1996, between

n H. Wimberly, as amended
ement dated effective May
yment Agreement dated
orated by reference to

s Quarterly Report on Form
nded June 30, 1997, filed
0, 1998).

f July 1, 1996, between

A. Allcorn, as amended by
nt dated effective May 21,
to Exhibit 10.11 of the
ment on Form S-1 (Reg. No.
ission on May 22, 1998).

n and Security Agreement
1994, by and between

and SEPCO Industries,
ment to Second Amended and
ement and Secured

, by and between SEPCO
pital Corporation,

ment to Barclays Business
ond Amendment to Second
ecurity Agreement dated
EPCO Industries, Inc. and
erly known as Shawmut

by Third Amendment to

n and Security Agreement
between SEPCO Industries,
Fleet Capital Corporation,
to Second Amended and
ement dated October 24,
stries, Inc. American MRO,
ion and as amended by

4, 1996, from Fleet
dustries, Inc., Bayou

nc. (incorporated by

the Registrant's

S-4 (Reg. No. 333-10021),
vember 6, 1996).

ed and Restated Loan and

, 1997, by and among SEPCO
Inc., American MRO, Inc.
incorporated by reference

. 1 to the Registrant's

n Form 10-Q/A for the
1997, filed with

ed and Restated Loan and
t to Other Agreements
ong Sepco Industries,
rican MRO, Inc. and Fleet
ed by reference to Exhibit
rly Report on Form 10-Q,
y 14, 1998).



EXHIBIT
NO.

10.16
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10.18

10.19

10.20
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10.22

10.23

10.24

DESCRIPTIO

-- Seventh Amendment to Second Ame
Security Agreement dated June 3
Sepco Industries, Inc., Bayou P
Inc. and Fleet Capital Corporat
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Report on Form 10-Q for the qua
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filed with the Commission on Au
-- Real Estate Note dated November
Engine & Pump Company, payable
Southwestern Life Insurance Com
reference to the Registrant's R
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DESCRIPTIO
-- Amendment to Loan and Security
1998, by and between DXP Acquis
Strategic Acquisition, Inc. and
(incorporated by reference to E
Registrant's Quarterly Report o
the Commission on May 14, 1998)
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DESCRIPTIO
-- Continuing Guaranty Agreement d
Acquisition, Inc. d/b/a Strateg
guarantying the indebtedness of
Fleet Capital Corporation (inco
Exhibit 10.9 to Amendment No. 1
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q o
quarterly period ended June 30,
Commission on November 17, 1997
-- Continuing Guaranty Agreement d
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guarantying the indebtedness of
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-- Continuing Guaranty Agreement d
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EXHIBIT 11.1

STATEMENT RE COMPUTATION OF PER SHARE EARNINGS

1996 1997 1998

Basic:

Average shares outstanding................ 3 ,996,974 4.081,555 4,159,319

Net income . 771,000 $2,665,000 $2,784,000

Per share amount $0.19 $0.65 $0.67
Dilutive:

Average shares outstanding................ 3 ,996,974 4,081,555 4,159,319

Net effect of dilutive stock options --

based on the treasure stock method

using period-end market price, if

higher than average market price 313,558 1,138,321 1,016,430
Assumed conversion of Class A convertible

Preferred StocK............coccvvveennnns 546,000 482,854 420,000
Total oo 4 ,856,533 5,702,730 5,595,749
Net inCome........ccceeviiiiiiieiiieie $ 890,000 $2,768,000 $2,874,000

Per share amount..............cccccevveennenn. $0.18 $0.49 $0.51



EXHIBIT 21.1
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
SEPCO Industries, Inc., a Texas corporation
Bayou Pumps, Inc., a Texas corporation and whollgied subsidiary of SEPCO Industries, Inc.
Pelican States Supply Company, Inc., a Nevada catipa

DXP Acquisition, Inc., a Nevada corporation (dolmgsiness as Strategic Supply, Ir



EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

As independent public accountants, we hereby cansehe incorporation of our report dated March 2299 included in this Annual Report
on Form 10-K, into the Company's previously filegistration statements on Form S-8 (File No. 3335@).

ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP
Houston, Texas

March 31, 199¢



ARTICLE 5

THIS SCHEDULE CONTAINS SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATIND EXTRACTED FROM THE AUDITED CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENTS OF DXP ENTERPRISES, INC. AS OF OEMBER 31, 1997, AND IS QUALIFIED IN ITS ENTIRETY B
REFERENCE TO SUCH FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

MULTIPLIER: 1,000

PERIOD TYPE YEAR
FISCAL YEAR END DEC 31 199
PERIOD START JAN 01 199
PERIOD END DEC 31 199
CASH 1,62¢
SECURITIES 0
RECEIVABLES 25,52
ALLOWANCES 1,15¢
INVENTORY 28,92¢
CURRENT ASSET¢ 57,24:
PP&E 23,63(
DEPRECIATION 10,47(
TOTAL ASSETS 81,33:
CURRENT LIABILITIES 20,15¢
BONDS 42,91(
PREFERRED MANDATORY 112
PREFERREL 20
COMMON 40
OTHER SE 15,547
TOTAL LIABILITY AND EQUITY 81,33:
SALES 203,44:
TOTAL REVENUES 203,44:
CGS 149,42:
TOTAL COSTS 149,42:
OTHER EXPENSE¢ 45,32¢
LOSS PROVISION 0
INTEREST EXPENSE 3,681
INCOME PRETAX 5,00¢
INCOME TAX 2,13(
INCOME CONTINUING 2,87¢
DISCONTINUED 0
EXTRAORDINARY 0
CHANGES 0
NET INCOME 2,87¢
EPS PRIMARY .67
EPS DILUTED 51
End of Filing
Pewerad By lilHiM_tm -
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